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Welcome to our annual review for 2015-16. To make it easier to ﬁnd the
information you are looking for we have produced four linked documents.
Delivering for our customers and Annual report and accounts, when combined,
represent the full non-statutory accounts of the company.

The summary document, Delivering for our customers, is available as a hard copy
and all four are on our website: www.wessexwater.co.uk
Delivering for our customers
This summary document
provides an overview of our
progress against performance
commitments, as well as
other company targets. The
document also provides an
overview of the ﬁnancial
and green accounts and the
strategic report for the year.
If you are interested in more
detail, this is provided in the
following supporting
documents.
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Annual report and accounts
The governance report
explaining how the board
undertakes its duties and
non-statutory ﬁnancial
accounts.
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Annual performance report
The regulatory accounts and
more detailed information
regarding the company’s
progress against our
performance commitments.

Sustainability indicators and accounting
A more detailed explanation of our
sustainability performance including a
broader range of performance measures
and a more detailed explanation of the
green accounts.
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Risk and Compliance Statement

Risk and Compliance Statement for the regulatory year 2015-16
Introduction
The Water Services Regulation Authority (WSRA/Ofwat) requires the Board to provide an annual Risk and
Compliance Statement (the Compliance Statement). The Compliance Statement is to confirm that the
Company has complied with all its relevant statutory, operating licence and regulatory obligations that have
not been confirmed by other processes, and that it is taking appropriate steps to manage and/or mitigate the
risks it faces. The Company is required to report by exception any instances where a regulatory output has
not been met. The annual review including the annual performance report contains information about
progress with outputs and gives details of progress on performance commitments and financial information
for customers, investors and regulators.
Most of the information in the Annual Review and used for the purposes of the Compliance Statement is
based on factual information from events that have occurred. Occasionally, reliance is placed on estimates
that have been made in good faith, based on reasonable assumptions and consistent with those made in
previous years except where otherwise stated.

Compliance Statement
The Board confirms that:


the Board has a full understanding of and is meeting, in all material respects, its statutory, licence
and regulatory obligations



the Company has met, in all material respects, relevant regulator and customer expectations as
demonstrated by those outputs and service standards set out in its business plan and funded
through the Final Determination



the Board is satisfied that the Company has sufficient processes and internal systems of control to
fully meet its obligations, or has disclosed any modification or failure to meet such obligations



the Company has appropriate systems and processes in place to allow the Board to identify,
manage and review risks. Principal risks and the appropriate management of them are set out in
the Strategic Report section of the annual review summary



the Company has sufficient financial and management resources for the whole year



the Company has sufficient rights and assets available to enable a special administrator to run the
business



any trade with associate companies was at arm’s length and no cross subsidy arose



Directors’ pay is linked to standards of performance as disclosed on page 27



any failure to deliver outputs agreed at the Final Determination has been disclosed



the Company is compliant with condition F6A.6 on credit ratings



the Board considered and approved the proposed charges for 2016-17 and the associated
assurance statement confirming that the Company had met Ofwat’s charging expectations and all
regulatory and statutory obligations



greenhouse gas reporting complies with Defra reporting requirements.
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Output Review
The Company has 880 individual regulatory outputs covering the AMP6 period of which 79 were due to be
delivered by the end of 2015-16. In addition, the Company has 32 performance commitments covering the
AMP6 period. These regulatory outputs and performance commitments agreed with regulators or promised
to customers in the Final Determination were kept under constant review by the Company. Regular reports
were prepared for Directors and senior managers detailing progress with the delivery of regulatory outputs
and performance commitments highlighting instances where such delivery may have been at risk.
Where there was a risk of failing to deliver a regulatory output, potential mitigation strategies were assessed
to see if the project could be brought back on schedule. If a major issue, such as land acquisition or planning
permission, had meant that an output could not be met, senior managers engaged with the relevant
regulator, the Environment Agency or the Drinking Water Inspectorate, to discuss the future course of action,
including the potential advancement of other outputs.
A report was made to each Board meeting showing progress against scheduled regulatory outputs and
performance commitments. The Board reviewed the report and proposed mitigations where difficulties had
been experienced.
The first two meetings of the Wessex Water Partnership, which has an independent chair and representation
from our key stakeholder groups, were held in 2015-16. The Company’s progress on the end of year
performance commitments was reported to the Partnership after it had been externally audited by the
Company’s technical auditor. Some of the performance commitments included in the Final Determination
were stretch targets with the potential that the target would not be met in the year or in subsequent years.
Where there was the potential for the target not to be met either in year or in subsequent years, the issue
was discussed with the Partnership to seek their views representing customers and stakeholders.
The Partnership reviewed the performance commitment information prepared for 2015-16 in their third
meeting in June 2016. They produced a final report to the Board recommending their support for the
performance commitment information provided in the annual review and annual performance report. The
Partnership’s report is separately published on the Company website.
During 2015-16 the Company has delivered 90 AMP6 regulatory outputs exceeding the target for the year by
11 outputs, principally by early delivery of CSO monitors and catchment management investigations. All
outputs that were due in 2015-16 as set out in our business plan and funded through the Final Determination
were delivered.

Customer Experience
The customer experience is continuously monitored through a range of mechanisms:


feedback cards are left with all customers visited upon departure



our customer care team keeps the customers informed on the progress of our work at their
property. They also contact customers within an hour or two of work being completed at their
property to check that the problem is resolved, the site has been left clean and tidy and the
customer is satisfied



each month an independent telephone satisfaction survey replicating the SIM survey is undertaken
of a random selection of customers whose billing or operational contacts have been resolved.
There has been no formal SIM survey this year while Ofwat has been piloting its new survey
process



each year, an independent image tracking survey gauges customer views
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our online customer panel, Have Your Say, is used to gather customers’ views on our service now
and in the future including satisfaction, value for money and customer effort scoring, along with
other topical issues



the Wessex Water Partnership has replaced the four customer liaison panels and customer
scrutiny group used during AMP5. The Partnership will be used throughout AMP6 and in the
preparation of the next price review in 2019 to represent the views of customers and key
stakeholder groups.

Customer Information
Licence conditions G, H and I on providing customer information are currently satisfied by a suite of
individual codes of practice which are regularly reviewed.
We believe that our communication process with customers is consistent with Ofwat’s requirements for the
provision of customer information as detailed in Information Note 13/04, with all information provided being
reviewed for its accuracy, transparency, clarity, accessibility and timeliness. This is supported by publication
of the Company’s Information Assurance Plan 2016 at the end of 2015-16 which provides details of how we
are proposing to improve the information that we provide to customers and stakeholders.
We consult with CCWater to ensure that the information provided meets customer requirements. Both the
nature of the information provided, and the way we provide it, are reviewed annually by CCWater when
customer charges are revised, as well as at other times during the year as and when individual leaflets are
updated.

Risk Review
The management of risk is of fundamental importance to the Company, to guard against both financial loss
and customer dissatisfaction. Customers, regulators and the media have increasing expectations and are
less willing than ever to accept failure. The Company’s policy on risk identification and management is
subject to annual review by the Board and the status of the principal risks is reviewed by the Board twice a
year.
The risk environment changes through time as some risks become less likely or less damaging while new
ones emerge. The Company’s processes are designed to respond flexibly to these changes and to ensure
that the necessary controls and mitigation measures are put in place. In considering the annual programme
of internal audits, the Audit Committee includes internal audits which review the status of the principal risks
and the mitigation measures in place.

Risk Process
The identification and management of risk is delivered through a tiered system of groups drawn from
operational staff, senior management, Executive Directors and the Board. The Board reviews and holds
ultimate responsibility for the risk process and for the identification and mitigation of risks.
Asset and operational risks are reviewed, assessed and recorded monthly by operational staff. Risks are
scored using a best practice process which assesses probability and impact on a five by five matrix. Risk
mitigation plans are recorded and implemented where appropriate and pre and post mitigation scores are
recorded.
The risks identified act as a foundation for a separate corporate risk register which is maintained by a Risk
Group comprising senior managers from throughout the business. The Risk Group reviews all business risks,
including emerging and strategic risks. All risks are assessed by experts responsible for the relevant part of
the business. Where a high scoring risk is identified the Risk Group considers additional measures to reduce
its impact to an acceptable level.
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Wherever possible, a risk is measured by its potential financial and environmental impact over the next five
years, whether direct or indirect, including any possible impact on the next price review. The Risk Group
meets twice a year and submits the current corporate risk register and summary report to a Risk
Management Advisory Group comprising the Executive Directors and key senior managers, again meeting
twice a year.
The Risk Management Advisory Group scrutinises and challenges the risks included within the register and
requires additional work where necessary to better classify the risk or explore alternative mitigation methods.
The Chief Executive submits an annual risk review paper to the Board for its consideration and approval.
This paper sets out the risk review process and identifies the current principal risks to the business and the
mitigation measures in place. It also records the status of emergent risks that have been identified and
provides details for the Board of any changes in the National Risk Register (NRR) and the National
Resilience Planning Assumptions (NRPAs).

Assurance and Board endorsement of the Compliance Statement
In compiling the Compliance Statement, the Company pays close attention to its performance reporting and
verification procedures. It has a detailed procedures manual setting out the process for completing every
aspect of the Annual Review including the Compliance Statement. This manual is annually reviewed,
updated and reported to Audit Committee, to reflect all changes to reporting requirements.
Francis Yeoh
Chairman

Note: Following a Board resolution on 30 January 2017 this risk and compliance statement was revised to
provide additional clarity.

Wessex Water Services Ltd
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Chairman’s Introduction
Wessex Water is committed to high standards of corporate governance. Under Condition F of its Instrument
of Appointment as a water and sewerage undertaker (the “Licence”) Wessex Water is required to conduct its
water and sewerage business as if it were the Company’s sole business as a public limited company. The
Licence also requires Wessex Water to have particular regard to the UK Corporate Governance Code as
approved for the purposes of the Listings Rules of the Financial Services Authority (the “Code”). The Code is
not a rigid set of rules and provides general principles of best practice. The Code is made up of “Main
Principles”, “Supporting Principles” and “Code Provisions”. The Code Provisions are subordinate to the
Principles. Whilst the Code is generally regarded as embodying best practice in UK Corporate Governance,
its main focus is the relationship between a listed company and its shareholders. Wessex Water has a single
shareholder and, accordingly, it is able to address some issues more directly and completely than it could if it
were a listed company.
Wessex Water’s focus is on complying with the Principles and spirit of the Code in its particular context as a
private limited company with a single shareholder. In practice, the Company complies with the Code
Principles and Code Provisions with only very limited exceptions. In those few areas where we have decided
not to follow the precise requirements of the Code we explain why, and how good governance is
nevertheless achieved.
The following parts of this Governance Report explain how good governance is at the heart of the
Company’s business and underpins the Company’s relationships with its customers, shareholder, and other
stakeholders. The Board regards it as fundamental to the long-term success of the Company to provide
excellent customer service and satisfaction. Governance arrangements are kept under constant review. We
continue to reflect best practice and maintain our position as the leading water and sewerage company for
customer service and satisfaction. We have set out our commitment to best practice in our Code of Practice
for Corporate Governance a copy of which is available on our website.
We believe that our governance arrangements ensure that the Company continues to operate effectively and
efficiently to the benefit of our customers, shareholder, and other stakeholders with clear accountability for
decision making.
Francis Yeoh
Chairman
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Governance Structures
The Board
The affairs of Wessex Water are ultimately the responsibility of the Board, which controls and directs the
undertaking of the regulated water and sewerage business. During the reporting year the Board composition
was as shown on page 7.
The Board annually reviews and approves the Company’s Organisation and Control Arrangements (O&CA)
which set out the framework for control of the Company’s affairs. The O&CA also specify requirements for
the competency of members of the Board and its Committees, for effective management of the Company
and for the granting of delegated powers and authorisations.
The principal duties of the Board, the matters reserved for its decision and the terms of reference of its
Committees are fully documented and copies are available on our website. Matters reserved to the Board
include strategy, charges, material changes to the Company’s management and control structure, Board
appointments, approval of material contracts, risk management, health and safety policies, disposal of
material assets, approval of the annual operating budgets, employee pension arrangements, significant
changes in accounting policies and defence and settlement of material litigation.
There are no matters specifically reserved to the shareholder. In practice the Board operates (and has
operated continuously for more than a decade) without the requirement for shareholder resolutions. As part
of its responsibility for the management of risk, the Board has determined criteria which control the extent of
dividends paid and consequently the financial gearing of the Company. As with all Board decision making,
these criteria were determined with the active involvement of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.
There are two Executive Directors, both appointed on one-year rolling contracts. During the year there were
at least four Independent Non-Executive Directors, exceeding by one the requirements of Condition P of the
Licence. Five further Non-Executive Directors are appointed by the Company’s sole shareholder including
the Chairman of the Board.
This balance on the Board ensures a high level of engagement and dialogue with the Company’s customers
and shareholder. In this way, Wessex Water complies with and exceeds the principles and spirit of the Code
without the need for compliance with certain specific Code Provisions (including those in relation to the use
of an annual general meeting to communicate with investors and encourage participation) which are not
relevant to a company with a single shareholder.
The Non-Executive Directors scrutinise the performance of management in meeting agreed goals and
objectives and monitor the reporting of performance. In addition, the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
led by the Senior Independent Director, reviewed the performance of the Chairman. They also form or
participate in the various Committees, assessing the integrity of financial information and whether financial
controls and systems of risk management are robust and defensible, determining appropriate levels of
remuneration for Executive Directors, assisting in appointing and, if necessary, removing Executive
Directors, and assisting in succession planning.
The Board ensures that Directors (and in particular the Independent Non-Executive Directors) have access
to independent professional advice at the Company’s expense where they judge it necessary to discharge
their responsibilities as Directors. The Board also ensures that the Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to undertake their duties.
The Company arranges appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ insurance against the usual legal risks faced
through holding office.
If Directors have concerns about the running of the Company or a proposed action which cannot be
resolved, they are encouraged to ensure that their concerns are recorded in the Board minutes and the
Wessex Water Services Ltd
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Independent Non-Executive Directors are encouraged, on resignation, to provide a written statement to the
Chairman highlighting any such concerns.
Due to the Company having a single shareholder, the Code provisions in relation to Directors being subject
to annual election by shareholders are of limited relevance and not applied.
Wessex Water complied with the Code’s Main Principles and Supporting Principles as to the composition of
the Board. Moreover, Wessex Water exceeded the requirements of the Code (designed for listed rather than
privately held companies) by having no fewer than four Non-Executive Directors, during the reporting year
who are directors or employees of the Malaysian holding company, thus enabling effective dialogue with the
shareholder.
While the Board has a majority of Non-Executive Directors, it does not have a majority of Independent NonExecutive Directors as envisaged by the relevant Code Provision. The Ofwat Board Leadership,
Transparency and Governance Principles are based on the Code, which applies to UK listed companies. The
principal purpose of the Code is to ensure that the interests of a company's members are protected and
represented at board level. The preface to the Code states that: "the function should be to help boards
discharge their duties in the best interests of their companies." The preamble to the Ofwat Principles states
that: "any departures from the [Ofwat] principles should be by exception in the spirit of corporate governance
for listed companies." In the context of a privately held company with a 100 percent shareholder, we consider
it to be in accordance with good corporate governance practice for there to be a significant number, if not a
majority, of shareholder representatives on the Board. In Wessex Water's case, the shareholder appointed
Non-Executive Directors (excluding the Chairman) are not a majority on the Board and are no greater than
the number of Independent Non-Executive Directors. Further, Wessex Water has four highly capable and
experienced Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Board considers its current composition ensures an appropriate balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge so that no single group can dominate decision taking and that the Board does
not become too unwieldy.
The search for Board candidates is conducted, and appointments and re-appointments are made, on merit,
against objective criteria, and with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board, including gender
diversity. All directors receive induction training on joining the Board and regularly update and refresh their
skills and knowledge.
The following were Directors during the year under review:
Executive Directors
Colin Skellett
Mark Watts
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Independent NonExecutive Directors
David Barclay
Gillian Camm
Huw Davies
Fiona Reynolds

Shareholder Non-Executive
Directors
Francis Yeoh CBE
Hann Yeoh
Hong Yeoh
Mark Yeoh
Kathleen Chew
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Chairman
Throughout the financial year under review Francis Yeoh was the Company’s Chairman.
The Chairman leads the Board, ensuring its effectiveness while taking into account the interests of all
stakeholders and promoting the highest standards of business ethics and governance. The Chairman is
responsible for ensuring that Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information. The Chairman also
promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the effective contribution of Non-Executive
Directors, in particular ensuring constructive relations between Executive and Non-Executive Directors, and
ensuring effective communication with the Company’s shareholder. Board agendas are agreed in
consultation with other Directors and the Company Secretary.
Any Director or the Company Secretary may request an item be included on the agenda
New Directors receive a full, formal and tailored induction on joining the Board (including an opportunity to
meet with representatives of the shareholder). Further training is given as required.
In his role as Chief Executive Colin Skellett has responsibility for the day to day business of the Company,
making proposals for its strategic direction and communicating with customers and other stakeholders.

Senior Independent Director
The Board has appointed David Barclay as the Senior Independent Director. He chairs the Audit Committee
and is a member of the Remuneration Committee and of the Nominations Committee. He would chair Board
meetings if the Chairman were unavailable. The Senior Independent Director’s role is to act as a sounding
board for the Chairman and to serve as an intermediary for the other Directors when necessary. He is also
available as an additional point of contact for the shareholder and other stakeholders.
As the Senior Independent Director and appointed in accordance with the Licence, he is well placed to
provide an independent link to WSRA, our regulator. His responsibilities during the reporting year included
leading the evaluation of the performance of the Chairman. Led by the Senior Independent Director, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors met without the other Directors present to appraise the Chairman’s
performance and to discuss any other relevant matters.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
The Company’s Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed from a range of different backgrounds
to bring to the Board external experience and insight. They provide independent thought and challenge to
the Board’s decision making. The Board has reviewed their status and concluded that they are all
independent. In particular, the Board considers these Directors to be independent in character and
judgement. The Board are not aware of any relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect, or could
appear to affect, any Independent Non-Executive Director’s judgement.
Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed, after consultation with Ofwat and with the agreement of
the Company’s shareholder, for an initial three-year term (subject to statutory provisions relating to removal)
that may be extended. Since 2011 we have seen the appointment of three new Independent Non-Executive
Directors and two new shareholder Non-Executive Directors.
Any term beyond six years for an Independent Non-Executive Director is subject to particularly rigorous
review and takes into account the need for progressive refreshing of the Board balanced against the
requirement for skills, experience, independence and knowledge. The Board considers that David Barclay
remained independent and that the Board is refreshed at sufficient intervals, and accordingly the Company is
compliant with the spirit of the Code in this respect. Continuity of appointment of some Independent NonExecutive Directors between Ofwat price reviews is desirable to facilitate scrutiny of Company performance
against its business plan.

Wessex Water Services Ltd
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On the 1st May 2016 Richard Keys was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director. Richard is a
chartered accountant with 37 years’ experience at Price PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and was a partner
there for 26 years holding a number of senior management positions, most recently that of global chief
accountant. In the last six years he has taken on a number of non-executive roles and is also a director at
Sainsbury’s Bank plc, NATS Holdings Ltd and at the Department for International Development.
Independent Non-Executive Director
David Barclay

Appointed
01/11/2005

Current term expires
31/10/2016

Gillian Camm

01/11/2011

01/11/2017

Huw Davies

01/09/2014

31/10/2017

Fiona Reynolds

01/08/2012

30/09/2018

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed on written terms setting the time commitments and
standards required of them. In accordance with Code Provision B.3.2, terms of engagement are regulated by
letters of appointment (copies of which are available on the Company’s website). Non-Executive Directors
representing the Company’s sole shareholder do not have formal terms of appointment and receive no
payments from the Company. In accordance with Code Provision B.4.1, all Directors are required to
participate in an induction process to familiarise themselves with the Company’s governance arrangements,
business, regulatory framework and ethos. Introductory meetings are held with all Executive and NonExecutive Directors, the Company Secretary and senior managers across the Company’s business.
Visits are made to the Company’s principal offices and representative operational sites. The training and
development needs of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors are reviewed
annually by the Chairman.

Company Secretary
All Directors have access to the Company Secretary and the Company’s internal solicitors. The Company
Secretary’s responsibilities include ensuring good information flows within the Board and its Committees and
between senior management and Non-Executive Directors, as well as facilitating induction and assisting with
professional development as required. The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Company’s O&CA and Board procedures are followed, and for advising on suggested changes.
The Company Secretary gives legal and regulatory advice as required by the Board or any Director and is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman on governance matters. The Board is kept informed
of major changes to law and regulation affecting the Company’s business. The Company Secretary also
advises on Directors’ duties and conflicts. All Directors are aware that any conflicts of interest must be
reported to and registered with the Company Secretary.
The appointment or resignation of the Company Secretary is a matter for consideration by the Board as a
whole. Andrew Phillips retired on 30th November 2015 and was succeeded with the agreement of the Board,
by Leigh Fisher-Hoyle on the same date.
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Board Meetings
The Board meets a minimum of six times a year at approximately bi-monthly intervals, which is considered
sufficiently regularly to enable the Board to discharge its duties effectively. It may meet on such further
occasions as may be required.
Board attendance in the financial year under review was as follows:
Board Attendance 2015-16
Colin Skellett
David Barclay
Gillian Camm
Mark Watts
Huw Davies
Fiona Reynolds

6/6
6/6
6/6
6/6
6/6
5/6

Kathleen Chew
Francis Yeoh
Hann Yeoh
Hong Yeoh
Mark Yeoh

6/6
6/6
5/6
5/6
6/6

Board Committees and Advisory Panels
Four formal committees operated throughout the financial year under review:


Audit Committee



Remuneration Committee



Nominations Committee



Corporate Responsibility Committee.

These Committees operate under the authority of the Board and assist the Board in carrying out its duties.
The Committees report back to the Board on decisions and actions taken together with any specific
recommendations. Reports from the Chair of each of the Committees are set out on pages 14 to 36.
The Board also receives reports from three liaison panels and a customer partnership panel as part of the
Company’s commitment to wide stakeholder engagement.
The Futures Panel is chaired by Fiona Reynolds. It keeps under review emerging issues facing all
companies today (including sustainability, health and the environment). By invitation a range of external
scientific and technical expertise is brought to this panel.
The Wessex Water Partnership including our key organisational stakeholders, scrutinises and assesses the
Company’s delivery against customer related outcomes and performance commitment. The Partnership is
independently chaired by Dan Rogerson who was previously Water Minister under the coalition Government.
The Catchment Panel helps to inform the Company’s decision making about sustainable land and water
resource use in the context of the Company’s services, constructed and natural assets and entitlements. The
panel includes representatives of the Environment Agency, Natural England, the Drinking Water
Inspectorate, the National Farmers’ Union and the Country Landowners Association. The panel is chaired by
Dr Richard Cresswell.

Wessex Water Services Ltd
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Board, Committee and Director Performance
The Board has agreed to review its own performance, and the performance of its Committees, the Chairman,
the Executive Directors and the Independent Non-Executive Directors, annually in accordance with the
Code. Generally, the Board will engage the services of an external Board evaluation consultant at least one
year out of three. Between external evaluations, reviews are facilitated by the Company Secretary.
In accordance with the Code a Board, Chairman and Committee Effectiveness Review was carried out in
May 2016. Evaluation of the Board considers the Board’s balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge of the Company and how the Board works together as a unit, and other factors relevant to its
effectiveness. A questionnaire was sent by the Company Secretary to all Directors. Individual responses
were aggregated and analysed on an anonymized basis, and the results presented to and discussed by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors on 17 June 2016. Several improvements were identified, including
facilitating wider visibility of activities outside the regulated entity, a greater focus on key topics such as new
business models and the newly formed Wessex Water Partnership, and a simpler structure for the regular
Board report

Directors’ Remuneration
Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in the Remuneration Committee Report on page 21.

Directors’ Interests and Conflicts
Directors are aware of the requirement to disclose interests in contracts with the Company and any conflicts
of interest. No such interests or conflicts were disclosed during the year.

Whistleblowing
The Company has adopted and publicised to all its employees a whistleblowing policy for reporting instances
of malpractice or inappropriate activity across all areas of business, including water regulation, health and
safety, bribery, corruption and fraud. All reports are treated on a strictly confidential basis. Reports on
whistleblowing are made to the Audit Committee and details are set out in the Audit Committee Report.

Anti-corruption
The Company has adopted a formal policy on business ethics. Directors and employees are expected to
commit to the highest standards of professional and ethical conduct in order to protect the Company’s
reputation and standing. Bribery and corruption is not tolerated. All Directors and employees are made aware
of the Company’s policy and that breaching it will result in disciplinary action. No instances of a breach of the
policy were recorded in the year.

Procurement
The Company has in place procurement rules that ensure awards of contracts for works, services and
supplies are made after compliance with the Utilities Contracts Regulations 2006 and for contracts below the
relevant thresholds in accordance with clear internal rules. The rules promote fair competition for potential
suppliers. All relevant staff are required to certify to internal audit through the year that they have complied
with the rules or to disclose non-compliance. No material instances of non-compliance were recorded during
the year.

11 Wessex Water Services Ltd

Governance Report

Group Structure
Ofwat’s published document Board Leadership, Transparency and Governance – Holding Company
Principles sets out the principles it expects the holding companies of a regulated water company to follow to
demonstrate adherence to the highest standards of governance, particularly in its interaction with a regulated
water company. The Holding Company Principles build upon and supplement the Company’s licence
provisions dealing with its relationship with its owners.
The Company’s ultimate holding company is a Malaysian company YTL Corporation Berhad that is listed on
the main market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. It addresses the Holdco Principles as described in the
paragraphs below.
A diagrammatic representation of the Group’s structure appears below showing ownership of the regulated
Company through to YTL Corporation Berhad and each company’s country of incorporation and role in the
structure. YTL Corporation Berhad at 31 March 2016 was 50.70% owned by third party shareholders and
49.30% owned by Yeoh Tiong Lay & Sons Holdings Sdn Bhd.
All companies 100% owned unless stated

Principal activities

Company details

Investment holding and management
company

Incorporated in Malaysia and quoted on
the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad

Investment holding and provision of
administrative and technical support
services

Incorporated in Malaysia and quoted on
the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad

YTL Utilities Limited

Investment holding company

Incorporated in Cayman Islands to look
for global mergers & acquisitions in the
utilities sector

YTL Utilities Holdings Limited

Investment holding company

Incorporated in Cayman Islands to look
for global mergers & acquisitions in the
utilities sector

YTL Utilities (UK) Limited

Investment holding company

Incorporated in United Kingdom, the
acquisition vehicle for the purchase of
the Wessex Water group of companies

Investment holding company

Incorporated in United Kingdom, also
owns SC Technology AG, Wessex Water
Enterprises Ltd and 50% of Bristol
Wessex Billing Services Ltd

Water supply and waste water services

Incorporated in United Kingdom, granted
a Licence as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act
1991

YTL Corporation Berhad
53.84%
YTL Power International Berhad

Wessex Water Limited

Wessex Water Services Limited

The following Directors of the Company are also Directors of the Group companies above:
Colin Skellett and Mark Watts are Directors of Wessex Water Ltd, YTL Utilities (UK) Ltd and YTL Utilities
Holdings Ltd.
Francis Yeoh and Mark Yeoh are Directors of Wessex Water Ltd, YTL Utilities (UK) Ltd, YTL Utilities Ltd,
YTL Power International Berhad and YTL Corporation Berhad. Hong Yeoh is a Director of Wessex Water
Ltd, YTL Utilities (UK) Ltd, YTL Utilities Holdings Ltd, YTL Utilities Ltd, YTL Power International Berhad and
YTL Corporation Berhad. Hann Yeoh is a Director of YTL Utilities Holdings Ltd.
YTL Corporation Berhad’s consolidated debt and equity are shown in its annual accounts available at its YTL
Corporation website. The Company has no borrowings with other Group companies.
The Company operates independently. There are no matters specifically reserved to the shareholder. In
practice the Board operates (and has operated continuously for more than a decade) without the
Wessex Water Services Ltd

12

Governance Report

requirement for shareholder resolutions. A list of those Directors of the Company who also hold office within
the Group structure appears above. Disclosure of the interests of such Directors has been made to the
Company.
Governance of YTL Corporation Berhad is in accordance with the requirements of Bursa Malaysia and
corporate law in Malaysia which include a requirement to publish statements in its annual accounts on
corporate governance, risk, risk management and internal control and the workings of its audit committee.
YTL Corporation Berhad and YTL Power International Berhad gave undertakings to Ofwat in 2002 upon the
acquisition of the Company that they and their subsidiaries would comply with the requirements of Licence
Condition P. The Condition P undertaking provides that:


they would give the Company all information as may be necessary to enable the Company to
comply with the conditions of its appointments as a water and sewerage undertaker;



to refrain from any action which would cause or may cause the company to breach any of its
obligations under the Water Acts or the conditions of its Licence;



to ensure that at all times the Company’s Board contains not less than three Independent NonExecutive Directors.

YTL Corporation Berhad has confirmed that it:


fully understands the duties and obligations of the Company arising under statute and its Licence;



is aware of and is complying with the obligations of Condition P of its Licence;



discharges these obligations by various means including through its knowledge of the terms of the
Licence, the appointments of shareholder directors to the Board of the Company and their
involvement in the affairs of the Company and the advice of its UK corporate lawyers;



will provide the Company with the information it legitimately needs to assure itself that it is not at
risk from activities elsewhere in the YTL Group;



will identify and disclose to the Company promptly in writing any issues, if such should arise, within
the YTL Group which may materially impact upon the Company for publication on the Company’s
website or disclosure in its annual report any relevant announcements made on Bursa Malaysia;



will facilitate, so far as it is reasonably able, compliance with the Company’s Code of Practice for
Corporate Governance;



will support the Company’s decision making processes so that it can make strategic and
sustainable decisions in the interests of the Company for the long term.
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Audit Committee Report
All the independent non-executive directors of the Board as below were members of the Audit Committee
throughout the financial year under review:
David Barclay (Chair)
Gillian Camm
Fiona Reynolds
Huw Davies
The Board is satisfied that all members of the Audit Committee are independent and that through David
Barclay and Huw Davies, the Committee has relevant financial experience.

Role and Report on Activities
In accordance with Code Provision C.3.2. and C3.3., our Governance Arrangements are available on the
Company’s website and provide full terms of reference for the Audit Committee.
This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee and the work it has undertaken during the
financial year under review.
The members of the Audit Committee receive updates on financial reporting, the regulatory framework and
performance throughout each financial year. In addition to the Committee members the following routinely
attend the Committee meetings by invitation: the Director of Finance, senior manager responsible for
Regulation and Customer Services, Financial Controller, Head of Internal Audit, and the audit partner from
the external auditor KPMG. Other senior management and the Company’s external technical auditor are also
invited to attend as appropriate. The technical editor for the Wessex Water Partnership is also invited to the
Audit Committee meeting which considers the Annual Review and Performance Report.
Following each meeting the chair of the Audit Committee reports to the subsequent meeting of the Board on
the Audit Committee’s work.
The Audit Committee met five times in the financial year under review, which it considered sufficient to
enable it to discharge its duties effectively. Its work focused on:


overseeing the Company's financial reporting processes and accounting policies



ensuring that the Company has adequate internal controls and that they are appropriately reviewed
and implemented



overseeing the internal and external audit programmes



ensuring compliance with the regulatory reporting obligations of the Company, including the Risk
and Compliance Statement and the Company’s performance commitments.

In accordance with Code Provision C.3.8, key issues discussed during the financial year under review
included:


detailed review of the Company’s preparedness for Open Water with the chair of the Committee
signing the first of the three assurance letters required by the Open Water methodology



detailed review of the Company’s Information Assurance Statement and Information Assurance
Plan in accordance with Ofwat’s Company Monitoring framework – final position and
recommending their approval to the Board



an update of the Company whistleblowing policy following the publication in March 2015 by the
Department for Business Innovation and Skills of guidance and a code of practice on
whistleblowing
Wessex Water Services Ltd
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Company performance on a number of internal processes to deliver regulatory outputs and
performance commitment data



detailed independent consideration of the half year results, the Annual Review documents
incorporating the Annual Performance Report prior to their ultimate approval by the Board



consideration of the material subjective assessments within financial reporting to ensure that the
Company’s treatment of these matters was properly addressed within the Company’s financial
statements



the review and agreement of the annual internal audit programme, the monitoring of internal audit
progress and the consideration of 16 internal audit reports in the year.

In reviewing the financial statements the Audit Committee considered the content, accuracy and tone of the
financial statements, the principal risks to the business on pages 37 to 38 of the Annual Review Summary,
the Risk and Compliance Statement on pages 1 to 4, and other financial disclosures prior to their release.
KPMG reported to the Audit Committee on their audit of the year-end financial statements.

Internal Controls
The Audit Committee monitors the effectiveness of the system of internal control assisted by internal audit. It
also reviews management reports received from the external auditor.
The Audit Committee receives reports on any whistleblowing allegations made to the Company from either
internal or external sources, concerning fraud, bribery or other matters. Reports include the outcomes of
resulting investigations and the management action taken. Where appropriate the Audit Committee is asked
to approve the proposed management actions. One anonymous whistleblowing allegation was received and
investigated in the year. No corroboration of the allegation was found.
Further details of internal controls and risk management systems in relation to the financial reporting process
can be found in the Risk and Compliance Statement on pages 1 to 4.

Financial Reporting
Material issues considered by the Audit Committee in relation to the financial statements (as also reported by
the external auditor) were as follows:

Bad Debt Provision
The Committee considered the key financial risk that arose due to the subjective nature of the provision. It
reviewed the methodology of the provision in relation to the different components of the debt and the
reasonableness of the differing provision made against each component.

Pension Deficit
The Committee considered the key financial risk that the assumptions made by the Company in association
with the independent actuary, in arriving at the pension deficit under IAS 19, could lead to an overly prudent
or aggressive position. In particular, the assumptions in relation to inflation, discount rate, pension and salary
increases, return on equity and life expectancy were tested against the range of assumptions used by other
companies.

Classification of Capital Expenditure
The Committee considered the key financial risk of the degree of judgement involved in the classification of
expenditure between operating expenses and capital expenditure. In doing so they considered the level of
capital expenditure, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines and International Financial Reporting Standards,
the recharges from overhead to capital projects and the controls of the Company.
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Taxation
The Committee also considered the amounts recorded for corporation tax and deferred taxation in the
income statement and balance sheet. They reviewed the split between current and prior year taxation, the
overall tax reconciliation and current taxation issues as highlighted by the external auditor.
The Committee was satisfied that each of the above issues had been adequately explained and correctly
recorded in the non-statutory accounts of the Company.

Misstatements
Management confirmed to the Audit Committee that they were no material misstatements or immaterial
misstatements in the financial statements to achieve a particular presentation. The external auditor reported
to the Committee that in the course of their work no misstatements had been found. The Committee was
satisfied that the external auditor had fulfilled its responsibilities to the Audit Committee and the Company.

Oversight of Internal Audit and External Audit
The Audit Committee oversees the work of the Company’s internal audit function, monitoring and reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal audit activities, and manages the relationship with its external auditor. The
Audit Committee reviews the performance of the internal and external auditor to ensure that they are
effective.
The Audit Committee regularly holds discussions at the end of its meetings with both the internal and
external auditor in the absence of executive management.

Internal Audit
The annual programme of planned internal audits is agreed by the Audit Committee prior to the start of each
financial year based on a balance of topics which represent major business risks, and internal business
processes which affect either financial or regulatory compliance. A total of 16 individual audit reports were
submitted to the Committee in the year.
At the request of either Executive Directors, senior managers or the Audit Committee, additional audits are
undertaken throughout the financial year to address any issues that arise in the financial year.
The Head of Internal Audit reports back on reviews of performance and the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal controls and their adequacy in managing business risk and performance. This work is summarised
and reported to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
The audit plans and the level of resources of the internal audit function are reviewed at least annually by the
Audit Committee. The Head of Internal Audit is free to raise any issues with the Audit Committee or its
Chairman at any time during the financial year.

Wessex Water Services Ltd
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External Auditor
KPMG were appointed as the Company’s auditor in 2002 and the audit contract has not been put out to
tender since. Although KPMG’s appointment exceeds the normal 10-year period suggested in the FRC UK
Corporate Governance Code, it is consistent with the transitional arrangements as published by the FRC,
that re-tender can take place at the end of the current audit partner’s term of office in 2017. The Committee
intends to re-tender the Company’s external audit services at that time.
The audit partner attends by invitation meetings of the Committee, and the Committee monitors the
effectiveness of the external auditor throughout the year taking into account their own experience of the
auditor’s effectiveness in the year.
KPMG was paid £156k for audit fees and a total of £25k for advice on tax and other matters. The individual
commissions for non-audit work were considered to have no impact on the auditor’s objectivity and
independence. As a matter of policy, fees paid to the external auditor for non-audit services will not exceed
50% of the annual audit fee unless approved in advance by the Chair of the Audit Committee.
KPMG reports to Ofwat in respect of the Company’s Annual Performance Report.
As part of the assurance process for this Annual Review document the Audit Committee also receives a
report from its technical auditor on non-financial regulatory performance information provided in the Annual
Review including the performance commitment data. The technical auditor services were re-tendered in
2015-16 and a new technical auditor, Mott McDonald, was appointed for the first three years of AMP6.
Audit committee attendance
David Barclay

5/5

Gillian Camm

5/5

Fiona Reynolds

5/5

Huw Davies

5/5
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Nominations Committee Report
The following were members of the Nominations Committee throughout the financial year under review:
Francis Yeoh (Chair)
David Barclay
Gillian Camm
Huw Davies
Fiona Reynolds
Colin Skellett
Hong Yeoh
The Nominations Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive Director appointed by the shareholder, by way of
exception to the relevant Code Provision. The relevant Code Provision envisages a majority of the members
being Independent Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman or an Independent Non-Executive Director
chairing the Committee. This is intended to ensure a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new Directors to the Board in the case of a listed company with disparate shareholders.
However, during the year the Company’s Nominations Committee complied with the Principles and spirit of
the Code and its composition reflects the requirements of a private company with a sole shareholder.

Role and Report on Activities
The Nominations Committee’s full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.
This report provides details of the role of the Nominations Committee and its work over the financial year
under review.
The purpose of the Nominations Committee is to ensure that appropriate procedures are in place for the
nomination, selection, training and evaluation of Directors. It reviews Board structure, size and composition.
The role of the Nominations Committee is to evaluate the balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge on the Board.
The Nominations Committee met once during the financial year under review under the chair of Hong Yeoh,
in the absence of Francis Yeoh. Its role includes monitoring the independence of Independent NonExecutive Directors, advising the Board on any conflicts of interest and reviewing executive succession
planning.
The Committee considered Independent Non-Executive Director changes and the recruitment and
appointment process for the appointment of a Managing Director for Wessex Water Services Limited, both of
which will take place in 2016-17. The committee also reviewed the executive succession planning process.
Nominations committee attendance
Francis Yeoh

0/1

Hong Yeoh

1/1

David Barclay

1/1

Gillian Camm

1/1

Huw Davies

1/1

Fiona Reynolds

0/1

Colin Skellett

1/1
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Corporate Responsibility Committee
The following were members of the Corporate Responsibility Committee throughout the financial year under
review:
Gillian Camm (Chair)
Fiona Reynolds
Chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director, the principal purpose of this Committee established in
2013 is to make recommendations to the Board about the Company’s corporate and social obligations to its
employees and other stakeholders. The Committee invited two former executive directors to the Company,
Andy Pymer and David Elliott (who stepped down from the Board in April 2014 as part of the Ofwat
governance initiative that resulted in the number of executive directors being reduced to two) to attend.

Role and Report on Activities
The Committee’s full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.
Corporate responsibility is central to the values against which our business operates. The Company’s longterm success depends on meeting the values of our customers, employees and other stakeholders.
During the year the Committee commented on and endorsed policies on flexible working, flexible retirement
and job share contracts, which were launched to complement the Company’s diversity strategy. These
polices have been presented to the Leadership Forum as part of the wider flexible working approach which
the Company is moving towards with respect to employee working and appropriate IT and communication
systems.
At each meeting the diversity metrics have been reviewed and challenged by the Committee. It is recognised
that progress is being made to attract, develop and retain a more diverse workforce but that it takes time for
initiatives to come into effect. An apprenticeship programme has been launched, with a full-time manager, to
promote the opportunities available with a network of colleges throughout the region and within the
Company. The success of the Open Day was reported along with plans for a Control Room Trailblazer, links
to the National Career Services, a Girls Allowed event and wider connections with businesses through our
region.
The Committee reviewed a number of reports throughout the year including the use of the Corporate
Hospitality Register, charitable giving, health and safety and the Gender Pay Gap reporting. Health and
safety has been a key theme throughout the year following the introduction of the five-year health and safety
strategy. The Committee has suggested revisions to ensure that well-being is included and to take account
of the occupational health and employee assistance service offered.
In addition, the Committee has reviewed the Company’s Sustainability Vision, environmental accounting
approaches and catchment reporting, all of which are being amended to take account of our longer term
plans beyond 2020. The suggestions made by the Committee have been considered and will be reflected
within these publications when produced later in 2016.
Corporate responsibility committee attendance
Gillian Camm

2/2

Fiona Reynolds

2/2
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Gender Diversity as of March 2016
Whole Workforce

Leadership Grades (M)

Female
36
15.7%

Female
477
22.2%

Male
193
84.3%

Male
1667
77.8%

Part time / Full time Diversity
Male

Whole Workforce

Part
time
1.3%

Female

Part
time
5.1%

Full
time,
98.7%

Part
time
18.5%

Full
time
94.9%

Full
time
81.5%

Employees with a Disability
Not known
0.8%

Disabled
0.3%

I'd rather
not say
0.2%

Not
Disabled
98.7%
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Remuneration Committee Report
Members
The following were members of the Remuneration Committee throughout the financial year under review:
Hong Yeoh (Chair)
David Barclay
Gillian Camm
Huw Davies
Mark Yeoh
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive Director appointed by the shareholder, by way
of exception to the relevant Code Provision. The relevant Code Provision envisages at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors on the Remuneration Committee. This is intended to ensure a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration
packages of individual Directors in the case of a listed company with disparate shareholders. However, the
Company’s Remuneration Committee complies with the Principles and spirit of the Code and reflects the
requirements of a private company with a sole shareholder, resulting in a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on executive remuneration.

Role and Report on Activities
The Remuneration Committee’s full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.
The Remuneration Committee determines, on behalf of the Board, the Company’s policy on the
remuneration (including pension rights and any compensation payments) of Executive Directors, the
Chairman and senior executive managers. The Committee seeks to link rewards to performance to promote
the long-term success of the Company and does not reward poor performance.
This report sets out the remuneration policy for the Directors of Wessex Water and discloses the amounts
paid to them in the financial year ended 31 March 2016. The policy also applies to the remuneration of the
Company’s senior managers.
The Remuneration Committee met twice during the financial year under review, which was considered
sufficient to enable it to discharge its duties effectively.
The Remuneration Committee continued to monitor the Company’s remuneration policy to take account of
evolving best and market practice. The annual bonus plan is designed to promote the success of the
Company over the five-year regulatory period, and is based on a portfolio of KPIs linked to the Company’s
performance scorecard and Ofwat’s measures of success.
Salary and bonus levels were benchmarked against the Hay Group Industrial and Service, National Utilities
and South West Utilities market sectors with jobs sized in relation to scope, role responsibilities and impact
to determine salary. The Remuneration Committee continued to take a proactive approach to responding to
developments in legislation, best practice and the wider market, as well as the corporate strategy, in order to
ensure that the Company’s senior executive reward policy remained market competitive and fit for purpose.
The Remuneration Committee addressed the need to ensure that changes in senior executive remuneration
are proportionate in the context of workforce pay. While it has not set a specific policy on the relationship
between Executive Directors’ pay and that of the rest of the workforce, it aims to ensure that executive salary
movement is appropriately aligned to the rest of the workforce and it specifically considers this aspect as part
of its decision making process.
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To ensure that the Company’s remuneration practices are competitive but not excessive, the Remuneration
Committee has access to detailed external research on market data and trends from experienced specialist
consultants.

Recruitment of Executive Directors
The base salary for any new Executive Director takes into account market data for the relevant role, relativity
with the salaries of existing Executive Directors, the individual’s experience and current base salary. In the
event that an individual is recruited at below market level, their base salary may be aligned over a period of
time to the upper quartile position of the relevant market position subject to their performance in the role.
Individual Executive Directors participate in a senior manager bonus scheme, governed by the Remuneration
Committee. Executive Directors have their target bonus set at 50% of base salary and their maximum bonus
at 100% of which a proportion is withheld until 2020 under Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) arrangements.
During the year, the Remuneration Committee took advice from their independent advisers, Hay Group. Hay
Group provided detailed market analysis and advice to the Committee for the senior management group,
including Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. Hay Group’s fee for providing such advice was
£14,000 for the year ended 31 March 2016. In line with best practice, the Committee assesses from time to
time whether the appointment of its current independent remuneration advisers remains appropriate and
whether the role should be put out to tender.
The Remuneration Committee also considers what compensation commitments (including pension
contributions and all other elements) Directors’ terms of appointment would entail in the event of early
termination. The aim is to avoid rewarding poor performance, and the Remuneration Committee would take a
robust line on reducing compensation to reflect departing Directors’ obligations to mitigate loss.
The Chief Executive (Colin Skellett) and the Group Head of Human Resources (Mark Nicholson) attended
the Remuneration Committee meetings to provide advice and respond to specific questions. They did not
participate in any discussion concerning their own remuneration.
Remuneration committee attendance
David Barclay

2/2

Gillian Camm

2/2

Huw Davies

2/2

Hong Yeoh

2/2

Mark Yeoh

2/2

The remuneration policy for senior executives is aligned to the Company’s four key focus areas, as shown
below.
Key focus

Remuneration policy

Customer service delivery
and business costs

Target annual bonus potential just below the median when
compared to industrial and service and national utilities market,
supported by competitive base salary at or below market upper
quartile.
Financial based KPIs within the annual bonus are set with close
regard to Ofwat’s determination, ensuring that we closely manage
our performance within the regulatory limits.
Customer focused KPIs form a substantial part of the annual bonus
scorecard.
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Employee alignment

The Remuneration Committee aims to ensure that the executive
salary movement is aligned to the rest of the workforce.
The performance scorecard is used for the annual bonus
throughout the Company.
KPIs within the annual bonus for all employees include health and
safety, engagement and training compliance factors.

Environment performance

KPIs within the annual bonus for all employees include environmental
factors.

Financial performance

A variety of financial KPIs are used within the annual bonus plan with
the aim of delivering a fair return to our shareholder.

The Remuneration Committee continues to monitor variable pay arrangements for the Executive Directors
and senior managers. The Remuneration Committee believes that the arrangements are appropriately
managed and that the choice of performance measures and targets does not encourage undue risk taking by
the executives so that the long-term performance of the business is not put at risk by considerations of shortterm value.
The arrangements incorporate a range of internal and external performance metrics, measuring both
operational and financial performance providing a rounded assessment of overall company performance to
ensure that a significant portion of executive remuneration is performance-related. More details of the
remuneration policy for Executive Directors is shown later in this report.

Policy for Loss of Office
There are no specific provisions for compensation on early termination (except for payment in lieu of accrued
but untaken holidays) or loss of office due to a change of ownership of the Company. The Committee will
review all contractual obligations and will seek legal advice as and when necessary on the Company’s
liability to pay compensation in such circumstances. The Committee will seek to reduce the level of
compensation payable taking into account, amongst other factors, the Company’s and the individual’s
performance, the Executive Director’s obligation to mitigate loss, and length of service.

Early Termination Payments made in the Year
The auditor is required to report on this information. No Executive Director left the Company during the year.

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
Note 4 to the accounts shows the total employment costs of the Company, which have been kept under
control between 2014-15 and 2015-16.
2015-16
£m

2014-15
£m

Movement
£m

Movement
%

Wages and salaries

69.2

71.8

(2.6)

(3.6)

Social security costs

6.7

6.4

+0.3

+4.7

Pension costs

12.2

10.4

+1.8

+17.3

Total employment costs

88.1

88.6

(0.5)

(0.6)

Capital schemes

31.6

28.4

+3.2

+11.3

Manpower costs

56.5

60.2

(3.7)

(6.1)

Charged to:

The relative importance of total employment costs can be shown as:
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Percentage of

2015-16

2014-15

Source

Turnover
Profit before tax
Profit after tax
Dividends
Capital expenditure

16.9%
55.2%
53.7%
104.9%
49.7%

16.4%
51.6%
63.0%
78.0%
48.5%

Income statement
Income statement
Income statement
Note 8
Cash flow statement

Remuneration Arrangements for Executive Directors 2015-16
The following table sets out a summary of the Company’s Executive Directors’ remuneration package, which
comprises the following elements:


basic salary



bonus (non-pensionable) subject to individual and company performance



Long-term incentive plan (LTIP)



pension plan



company car



private fuel allowance



private health insurance and executive medical screening



share option scheme of a parent company YTL Power International Berhad.

The table below highlights the key elements of executive remuneration and the link to company strategy,
how executive remuneration is operated in practice and the link to relevant performance metrics.
Element of pay

Purpose and link to Company strategy

Base salary

To attract and retain the high calibre Executive Directors and Senior
Managers needed to implement the Company’s strategy and maintain its
leading position in the industry.
To provide a competitive salary relative to comparable companies in terms of
size and complexity.

Taxable benefits

To attract and retain high calibre Executive Directors and Senior Managers
and to remain competitive in the market.

Pension

Annual bonus

LTIP

To attract and retain high calibre Executive Directors and Senior Managers
and to remain competitive in the market.
To motivate and reward Executive Directors and Senior Managers for the
achievement of demanding financial objectives and key strategic measures
(including measures of customer satisfaction, service quality and
environmental performance) over the financial year and five-year regulatory
period.
The performance measures set are stretching in the context of the nature,
risk and profile of the Company.
To motivate and reward Executive Directors for the achievement of
demanding financial objectives and key strategic measures (including
measures of customer satisfaction, service quality and environmental
performance) over the five-year regulatory period to promote the long term
success of the Company.
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How operated in practice

Base salary

Taxable benefits

Reviewed annually and takes effect from 1 April.
Review takes into consideration:
 individual responsibilities, experience and performance
 salary levels for similar sized roles in utilities and south west industrial
and service markets
 the level of pay increases awarded across the Company
 economic and market conditions
 the performance of the Company.
Salaries are paid monthly.
Benefits include:
 company car
 private medical insurance
 executive health screening
 private fuel allowance.

Pension

All Executive Directors are members of the Company’s defined benefit
pension scheme.
Executive Directors are also insured for a lump sum of up to four times their
pensionable salary on death in service.

Annual bonus and
LTIP

The Board of Directors sets annual performance targets for the Company
prior to the commencement of each new financial year.
Company and individual performance against those targets is measured at
the end of the financial year and the level of bonus payable is calculated at
that point. Bonuses are paid in April.
From 1 April 2015 the Remuneration Committee established a Long-Term
Incentive Plan for Executive Directors whereby 20% of any above target
bonus element earned will be held back for payment at the end of AMP6 in
2020. The Company will match the value of the retained bonus payment, up
to 100%. The long-term incentive payment will be paid to Directors in April
2020.
The Committee has the discretion to, and does consider the effect of
corporate performance on environmental and governance risks when
reviewing Executive Director and senior management bonuses to ensure
variable remuneration incentivises and rewards appropriate behaviour. Part
of the bonus may be forfeited for under performance in respect of customer
service, environmental, regulation and employee related performance targets.
Annual bonus is not pensionable.

Maximum opportunity

Base salary

There is no prescribed maximum increase. However, Executive Director
salary increases are aligned to the increases provided to all Company
employees. Such increases are negotiated by the joint staff council involving
management and trade union representatives.

Taxable benefits
Pension
Annual bonus

N/A
18.2% of base salary
Maximum bonus opportunity is 100% of base salary.

Description of performance metrics
Base salary
Taxable benefits
Pension
Annual bonus

N/A
N/A
N/A
A combination of 32 key performance indicators relating to financial,
customer, environment and assets and employee related measures and
targets.
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An equal weighting is applied to financial, customer, environment and assets
and employee related measures (health and safety, training and
engagement). The Committee has absolute discretion in making bonus
payments.
Change to policy
Base salary
Taxable benefits
Pension
Annual bonus

No change
No change
No change
No change but the key performance indicators were updated.

A detailed explanation of each of these follows and the table below highlights some of the elements.
Component 2015-16
Target bonus (% of salary)
Maximum bonus (% of salary)
Actual bonus paid (% of salary)
Actual bonus held as LTIP (% of salary)
Share options (maximum)
Pension arrangement
Benefits

Colin Skellett
Chief Executive
50
100
62
3
Approved 87,000
Unapproved 1,913,000
Defined benefit
[Pension in payment]
See below

Mark Watts
Director
50
100
65
4
Approved 87,000
Unapproved 913,000
Defined benefit
See below

Benefits were company car based on list price and CO2 emissions, fuel £4,310 and private medical
insurance £1,775 (family).

Base Salaries and Benefits
Executive Directors’ remuneration is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee and takes effect
from 1 April. Salaries are set with reference to individual performance, experience and contribution, together
with development in the relevant employment market (having regard to the upper quartile position for high
performers in similar roles in the relevant employment market) and internal relativities.

Differences between Executive Directors’ and Employees’ Remuneration
The following differences exist between the Company’s policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors
and its policy for the remuneration of employees:


Executive Directors pay is benchmarked against the upper quartile position of the South West
Utilities market whilst we benchmark median pay and benefits against the South West Industrial
and Service market for all fully qualified and experienced employees



A lower level of target and maximum annual bonus opportunity applies to various employees when
compared to Executive Directors. However, all employees, including Executive Directors and
senior managers were subject to the same negotiated pay award increase



Executive Directors (and senior managers) participate in a bonus scheme that is not available to
other employees to motivate and reward them for achievement of demanding financial objectives
and key strategic measures.

In general, these differences arise from the development of remuneration arrangements that are market
competitive for the various categories of staff ranging from employees to Executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee gives due consideration to the current economic climate and current market
practice regarding executive salary reviews and the broader employee salary review policy at the Company.
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We do not normally link pay levels to company performance measures, as this is done where appropriate
through the bonus arrangements.
The Remuneration Committee has reviewed 2015-16 salaries and has determined that salaries for Executive
Directors will be increased from 1 April 2016 by 1.0% for Colin Skellett and 7.7% for Mark Watts. For Colin
Skellett this increase is in line with the agreed increase across the rest of the Company and for Mark Watts
the Remuneration Committee considered that a higher increase in salary was warranted as the salary was
low compared to the South West Utilities upper quartile.

Executive Directors’ bonuses
2015-16 scheme
The annual bonus of Executive Directors is performance-related and designed to promote the long-term
success of the Company. It is dependent on the achievement of Company and individual targets.
Bonus disclosed is in relation to the performance in the year, and is paid in April following the year end.
The Company targets are 32 key performance indicators covering financial measures, customer service,
environmental and asset measures and employee matters, as shown below.
Financial – profit after corporation tax / operational costs / net capital expenditure / cash flow before
dividends / dividends declared.
Customers – Service Incentive Mechanism combined score / customers rating service good or very good /
customers rating ease of resolution / compliance with drinking water standards / customer contacts about
drinking water quality / volume of water saved through water efficiency / properties supplied by a single
source of water / properties suffering supply interruptions > 3 hours / volume of water leaked / restrictions on
water use / internal flooding incidents per 10,000 properties / flooding risk score.
Environment and Assets – EA’s Environmental Performance Assessment / bathing water failures due to
WWSL activities / Biodiversity Action Plan landholding assessed and managed / greenhouse gas emissions /
proportion of electricity self-generated / all regulatory outputs met / compliance with abstraction licences /
water main bursts / monitoring of CSO’s presenting a risk to the environment / collapses and bursts on
sewerage network.
Employees – RIDDOR incidents per 1,000 employees / employee rating company as a good employer /
compliance with training plan / staff turnover / diversity plan progress as assessed by Corporate
Responsibility Committee.
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The target bonus for the Executive Directors was calculated as follows.
Target bonus 2015-16
Financial
% of salary
Amount £
Customer
% of salary
Amount £
Environment and Assets
% of salary
Amount £
Employees
% of salary
Amount £
Individual
% of salary
Amount £
Total
% of salary
Amount £

Colin Skellett
Chief Executive

Mark Watts
Director

10.0%
34,992

10.0%
20,800

10.0%
34,992

10.0%
20,800

10.0%
34,992

10.0%
20,800

10.0%
34,992

10.0%
20,800

10.0%
34,992

10.0%
20,800

50%
174,960

50%
104,000

In the financial year under review, 29 of the 32 Company targets were achieved or bettered. The three
company targets not achieved were compliance with drinking water standards, bathing water failures due to
Wessex Water activities and employees rating the company as a good employer.
As regards drinking water standards there was only one failure due to Wessex Water operational failures,
there was only one bathing water failure which was at Burnham Jetty and the employee rating of the
company as a good employer was only a marginal failure at 83% compared to the 85% target.
The actual bonus payments are shown in the Directors’ emoluments table. The detail of how these bonus
payments were calculated is shown below.
Actual bonus 2015-16
Financial
% of salary
Amount £
Customer
% of salary
Amount £
Environment and Assets
% of salary
Amount £
Employees
% of salary
Amount £
Individual
% of salary
Amount £
Total
% of salary
Amount £

Colin Skellett
Chief Executive

Mark Watts
Director

12.4%
43,478

13.0%
27,200

12.4%
43,478

13.0%
27,200

12.4%
43,478

13.0%
27,200

12.4%
43,478

13.0%
27,200

12.4%
43,480

13.0%
27,200

62%
217,392

65%
136,000

Annual bonus payments to Executive Directors are not pensionable.
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Pensions
Executive Directors are members of the Wessex Water defined benefit pension scheme.
The scheme is a HMRC registered defined benefit occupational pension scheme. The Executive Directors
are members of the WPS section which provides:


a normal retirement age of 65 years



a pension at normal retirement age based on 1/60th of completed pensionable service and final
pensionable salary



life cover of four times basic salary including bonus



a pension payable in the event of retirement on grounds of ill health



a dependant’s pension on death of two thirds of the member’s pension



guaranteed increases in line with price inflation (subject to a maximum of 5% each year).

Members’ contributions are payable at the rate of 8% of basic salary, with the Company making a further
18.2% contribution. Early payment of pension is available from age 55 with the consent of the Company. Any
pension would be subject to a reduction, based on rates the trustees consider appropriate, acting on
actuarial advice, to reflect the expected longer payment of the pension. No additional pension will become
receivable by a Director if that Director retires early.
In the event of incapacity, an unreduced pension is payable immediately. Incapacity pensions can be paid on
either a “partial” or “full ill health” basis depending on the conditions met. A full ill health pension is topped up
to give additional service to age 65, subject to a maximum of 20 years.
Under the Trust Deed and Rules, pensions in payment in excess of any guaranteed minimum pension are
guaranteed to increase in line with price inflation subject to a maximum of 5% each year. In the calculation of
individual cash equivalent transfer values, allowance is made for such increases.
As a result of the changes in pension legislation for high earners, Wessex Water has introduced the following
options for individuals under age 55 who are affected by the tax changes:


continue in the scheme, with individuals meeting any tax liabilities as they fall due; or



continue in the scheme with a capped pensionable salary which restricts pension growth to the
annual allowance limit (£50,000 pa) and receive a cash supplement in lieu of pension entitlement
on the excess salary. The cash supplement is based on the employer contribution rate to the
scheme, currently 18.2%.

Mark Watts received a cash supplement of 18.2% of excess salary above the capped salary for pension
purposes from 1 April 2015 to 8 July 2015.

Executive Directors’ Service Contracts
All Executive Directors’ service contracts are terminable by either the Company or the Executive Director
providing 12 months’ notice. There is a theoretical maximum payment in case of redundancy of 100% of
salary inclusive of allowances and benefits plus their redundancy entitlement. There are no specific
contractual payments or benefits which would be triggered in the event of a change in control of the
Company.
Date of current
agreement

Date of appointment as
Executive Director

Colin Skellett

01/04/2014

01/09/1989

12 months

Mark Watts

01/04/2014

16/03/2010

12 months

Executive Directors
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Executive Directors’ service contracts are available for inspection during normal office hours at the registered
office, Wessex Water, Claverton Down Road, Bath BA2 7WW.
The Remuneration Committee will continue to review the contractual terms for Executive Directors to ensure
they reflect best practice and are compliant with employment law. No new Executive Directors were
appointed during the financial year under review.
None of the Executive Directors served as a Non-Executive Director for another company.

Non-Executive Directors
The remuneration policy for Independent Non-Executive Directors is determined by the Board. The
remuneration reflects the time commitment and responsibilities of the role.
The breakdown of the Independent Non-Executive Directors’ fees from 1 April 2015 is shown in the
Directors’ Emoluments table below. Independent Non-Executive Directors do not participate in share or
bonus schemes or any other performance-related scheme, nor is any pension provision made.
Independent Non-Executive Directors are normally appointed for three-year terms (subject to statutory
provisions relating to the removal of a Director) that may be renewed. They do not have service contracts but
their terms of engagement are regulated by letters of appointment (copies of which are available on the
Company’s website).
Any term beyond six years for an Independent Non-Executive Director is subject to particularly rigorous
review and takes into account the need for progressive refreshing of the Board balanced against the
requirement for skills, experience, independence and knowledge.
Non-Executive Directors appointed by the shareholder do not receive any fees or other payments from the
Company.

Directors’ Emoluments
The table below shows the emoluments for the current year.
The auditor is required to report on the information in the tables on pages 30 to 33.
Salary
£000

Bonus
£000

LTIP
£000

Benefits
£000

Pension
contributions
£000

Total
£000

David Barclay

85

-

-

-

-

85

Gillian Camm

65

-

-

-

-

65

Huw Davies

65

-

-

-

-

65

Fiona Reynolds

65

-

-

-

-

65

Colin Skellett

350

217

11

24

-

602

Mark Watts

211

136

8

17

35

407

Total £000

841

353

19

41

35

1,289

2015-16

1. No emoluments earned by Francis Yeoh, Hann Yeoh, Hong Yeoh, Mark Yeoh or Kathleen Chew.
2. Benefits comprise private medical insurance, company car and fuel benefits.
3. Two Directors received emoluments for services to other Group Companies, Colin Skellett £291k
and Mark Watts £252k. The Audit Committee was satisfied that services provided to other Group
Companies do not reduce the effectiveness of the Directors’ provision of services to the Company.
The table below shows the emoluments for the prior year.
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Salary
£000

Bonus
£000

Benefits
£000

Pension
contributions
£000

Total £000

David Barclay

80

-

-

-

80

Gillian Camm

60

-

-

-

60

Peter Costain

60

-

-

-

60

Huw Davies

35

-

-

-

35

Fiona Reynolds

60

-

-

-

60

Colin Skellett

346

140

23

-

509

Mark Watts

201

96

17

29

343

Total £000

842

236

40

29

1,147

2014-15

Huw Davies and Peter Costain part year in 2014-15.

Chief Executive
No remuneration was paid to the Chairman (2015 – nil). The total remuneration for the Director performing
the role of Chief Executive (Colin Skellett) was:
Remuneration
2015-16 £000

Remuneration
2014-15 £000

%
change

350
217
11
24

346
140
23

1.2%
55.0%
n/a
4.3%

87
195
3
6

86
175
6

1.2%
11.4%
n/a
-

893

776

15.1%

All employees WWSL
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

69,200
6,700
12,200

71,800
6,400
10,400

(3.6)%
+4.7%
+17.3%

Total

88,100

88,600

(0.6)%

WWSL
Salary
Bonus
LTIP
Benefits
Other group companies
Salary
Bonus
LTIP
Benefits
Total

Included in the 2015-16 remuneration for the Chief Executive was a bonus of £217k representing 62% of
salary, the target bonus being 50% of salary and the maximum 100% of salary.
Comparison with remuneration increase for all employees:
The pay increase awarded to the employees of the Company on 1 April 2016, for the year 2016-17, was a
1.0% increase over the preceding year.
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Remuneration Link to Performance
The table below compares the movement over ten years in total emoluments of the Company with the
movement in the key financial performance measures of turnover, profit after tax and dividends.

£550m
£500m
£450m
£400m
£350m
£300m
£250m
£200m
£150m
£100m
£50m
£0m
2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16
Turnover

Profit after tax

Dividends

Total emoluments

Dividends are as declared in the year. Total emoluments include Directors’ emoluments.

Executive Directors’ Defined Benefit Pension Provision
Pension
service
completed in
years (1)

Normal
retirement
date at 65

Accrued
pension at
31/3/2015
£pa

Increase in
accrued
pension
during the
year £pa

Accrued
pension at
31/3/2016
£pa

Colin Skellett (2)

41

n/a (2)

166,618

2,636

169,254

Mark Watts

27

19/9/2026

84,443

24,177

108,620

(1) Including transfers in and bonus years
(2) Pension in payment
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Executive Directors’ Share Interests
Share Options
YTL Power International Berhad (a parent company and itself a subsidiary of YTL Corporation Berhad)
operates a share option scheme under which options are granted to employees of the Company. The terms
of the scheme are specified under the YTL Power ESOS (2011 UK part) known as the “2011 UK Plan”.
The majority of options are issued under terms approved by HMRC (the “Approved” scheme) but some are
issued to senior employees under an “Unapproved” scheme. The options are for ordinary shares in YTL
Power International Berhad of Malaysian Ringgit RM0.50 each.
The Executive Directors have been granted ordinary share options of Malaysian Ringgit RM0.50 each in YTL
Power International Berhad under the 2011 UK Plan. The exercise of share options granted is not subject to
any performance criteria, other than continued employment within the group.
Share options held by Executive Directors at the start and end of the financial year, and the exercise price of
those share options are shown in the table below:

Colin Skellett

Mark Watts

Opening
number
31/3/2015

Exercise
price RM

Date of
grant

Exercise
date

Expiry date

Closing
number
31/3/2016

87,000

1.65

1/6/2012

1/6/2015

31/3/2021

87,000

1,913,000

1.41

1/6/2012

1/6/2015

31/3/2021

1,913,000

87,000

1.65

1/6/2012

1/6/2015

31/3/2021

87,000

913,000

1.41

1/6/2012

1/6/2015

31/3/2021

913,000

Approved options were granted at an exercise price of RM1.65. Unapproved options were granted at an
exercise price of RM1.49, which was adjusted to RM1.41 following the distribution to all shareholders of one
share for every 20 ordinary shares held as at 13 March 2014.
The share price at 31 March 2016 was RM1.48 or £0.27.

Shares Held
There are no shares held by the Directors in the Company or the UK parent company.
The Executive Directors held the following ordinary shares of Malaysian Ringgit RM0.50 each in YTL Power
International Berhad (a parent company), at the start and end of the accounting period.

Mark Watts

Opening number
31/3/2015

Closing number
31/3/2016

388,030

388,030

The share price at 31 March 2016 was RM1.48 or £0.27.
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Remuneration Arrangements for Executive Directors 2016-17
Colin Skellett
Chief Executive

Mark Watts
Director

Target bonus (% of salary)

50

50

Maximum bonus (% of salary) of which a
proportion is withheld until 2020 under LTIP
arrangements

100

100

Approved 87,000 Unapproved
1,913,000
Defined Benefit [Pension in
payment]

Approved 87,000
Unapproved 913,000

Component

Share options (maximum)
Pension arrangement
Taxable benefits

Defined benefit

Company car, fuel and private medical insurance

Bonus Scheme 2016-17
For 2016-17 there are 29 performance indicators set to reflect the corporate targets in the current regulatory
period, as shown below.
Financial – profit after corporation tax / operational costs / net capital expenditure / cash flow before
dividends / dividends declared.
Customers – Service Incentive Mechanism combined score / customers rating service good or very good /
compliance with drinking water standards / customer contacts about drinking water quality / volume of water
saved through water efficiency / properties suffering supply interruptions > 3 hours / volume of water leaked /
restrictions on water use / internal flooding incidents per 10,000 properties / flooding risk score.
Environment and Assets – EA’s Environmental Performance Assessment / bathing water failures due to
WWSL activities / Biodiversity Action Plan landholding assessed and managed / greenhouse gas emissions /
proportion of electricity self-generated / all regulatory outputs met / compliance with abstraction licences /
monitoring of CSO’s presenting a risk to the environment / collapses and bursts on sewerage network.
Employees – RIDDOR incidents per 1,000 employees / employee rating company as a good employer /
compliance with training plan / staff turnover / diversity plan progress as assessed by Corporate
Responsibility Committee.
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Target bonus 2016-17
Financial
% of salary
Amount £
Customer
% of salary
Amount £
Environment and Assets
% of salary
Amount £
Employees
% of salary
Amount £
Individual
% of salary
Amount £
Total
% of salary
Amount £

Colin Skellett
Chief Executive

Mark Watts
Director

10.0%
35,342

10.0%
22,400

10.0%
35,342

10.0%
22,400

10.0%
35,342

10.0%
22,400

10.0%
35,342

10.0%
22,400

10.0%
35,342

10.0%
22,400

50%
176,710

50%
112,000

Long-term Incentive Plan from 1 April 2015
In September 2014, the Financial Reporting Council published a revised code of practice of the UK corporate
governance code which introduced new provisions relating to executive remuneration, including a change
that, remuneration policies must be designed to promote the long-term success of the Company.
The Remuneration Committee approved the establishment of a long-term incentive plan for Directors
whereby 20% of any above target bonus element earned will be held back for payment at the end of AMP6
in 2020. The Company will match the value of the retained bonus payment, up to 100%. The long-term
incentive payment will be paid to Directors in April 2020.
The amount held back from Directors in the first year of the scheme was £10,608 for Colin Skellett and
£8,000 for Mark Watts.
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Illustrations of Remuneration Policy
A) Chief Executive Officer – Colin Skellett (using estimated 2016-17 data)
£800k
4.8%

£700k
£600k

43.5%
£500k
31.8%

LTIP

£400k
6.4%

4.4%

3.3%

Bonus
Benefits

£300k

Salary
£200k

93.6%

63.8%

48.4%

Minimum

Target

Maximum

£100k
£0k

Minimum assumes no bonus earned, target assumes 50% bonus earned and maximum assumes 90%
bonus and 10% LTIP earned. No employer pension contributions.
B) Director of Finance – Mark Watts (using estimated 2016-17 data)
£600k

£500k

4.5%
6.3%

£400k
8.1%

40.6%
£300k

Pension

29.2%
11.5%
6.2%

LTIP

Bonus
4.4%

3.4%

£200k

Benefits
Salary

£100k

82.3%

58.3%

45.2%

Minimum

Target

Maximum

£0k

Minimum assumes no bonus earned, target assumes 50% bonus earned and maximum assumes 90%
bonus and 10% LTIP earned.

Wessex Water Services Ltd

36

Governance Report

Viability Statement
In accordance with the provision C.2.2 of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2014 the Directors are
required to assess the viability of the Company over a longer period than the 12 months required by a Going
Concern statement.
The Directors have determined that a three-year period to 31 March 2019 is an appropriate period over
which to provide its Viability Statement. The Directors recognise that the normal business cycle for the
Company is five years, but that the Company is already one year into the current cycle. This three-year
period falls within the current five-year regulatory control period that began on 1 April 2015 and for which a
detailed business plan was approved by the Directors and submitted to the Water Services Regulation
Authority (WSRA/Ofwat).
The Directors have reviewed the principal risks shown on pages 37 to 38 of the Annual Review Summary.
They have taken into account the current financial position of the Company, its cash deposits and available
funds. The regulatory model allows some certainty over the turnover of the Company over the next three
years subject to assumptions on inflation. The regulatory model also allows for allowed turnover to be
adjusted upwards in the event of a substantial adverse effect on the financial position of the Company, where
this effect would not have been avoided by prudent management action, and also where a new legal
obligation imposed on the Company as a water and sewerage undertaker has led to a material increase in
the costs incurred.
There is a large capital expenditure programme over the next three years, of a similar nature to that
delivered in previous regulatory control periods, allowing the Directors to be able to predict the cost of
construction with some certainty. The borrowing facilities in place are long term and maturing after 31 March
2019 with the exception of one £140m loan. The mix of borrowings is spread between fixed, floating and
index linked. Interest rates are a historically low and stable level and predictions of future increases are
moderate.
All of the above has allowed the Directors to prepare a robust model of future trading performance and cash
flows that can then be tested under various scenarios, to determine if the Viability Statement can be made.
The key areas considered by the Directors were:


the liquidity of the Company over the next three years, and the probability that the Company will be
able to replace the £140m loan with another borrowing facility



compliance with financial covenants in respect of gearing and interest cover



the impact of increased interest rates



the impact of decreased inflation



the impact of a higher than expected accounting pension deficit



mitigations in place in respect of the principal risks.

Following these assessments the Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the
Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due up to 31 March 2019.

See also long-term viability statement in Annual Performance Report.
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Directors’ Report
The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited non-statutory accounts (subsequently
referred to as accounts) for the year to 31 March 2016. The financial year end of all Group Companies is 30
June, but under the conditions of appointment of the Company (under the Water Industry Act 1991) the
Company is required to prepare a regulatory Annual Performance Report for the 12 months ended 31 March
each year.
Non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the same period to allow users of the regulatory Annual
Performance Report to reconcile those results to the Company accounts. Under the terms of its Licence as a
water and sewerage undertaker the Company is required to prepare a statement of corporate governance as
if it were a listed company.
The Directors consider the annual report and non-statutory accounts taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced
and understandable and it provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
position and performance, business model and strategy.

Principal Activities
The main activities of the Company are the supply of water and the treatment and disposal of waste water.
In December 2014 the industry regulator Ofwat announced the final price control determination for the fiveyear period to March 2020. The price control for this period has been extended from one price control to four
price controls covering wholesale water, wholesale waste water, household retail and non-household retail.
The Directors accepted the price review for the next five years.
There was a price reduction imposed by Ofwat at 1 April 2015 of 5.9% offset by the increase in RPI at
November 2014 of 2.05%, a net reduction of 3.85%.

Sustainability
Wessex Water Services Ltd has a sustainability vision that guides our progress towards being a sustainable
water company. The sustainability vision is reviewed bi-annually.

Ethical Policy
We are determined to maintain our reputation as a Company that observes the highest standards of personal
and corporate integrity by adhering to a strict code of business ethics. We aim to be the best and value
everyone's contribution in our pursuit of excellence.
We are honest in the way we conduct our business. We treat one another, our customers and the
environment with respect.

Employment
Wessex Water Services Ltd is an equal opportunities employer. No person or group of persons applying for a job
with the Company is treated less favourably than any other person or groups of persons because of their gender,
race, class, colour, nationality, ethnic origin, marital status, sexual orientation, age, trade union membership or
activity, religious belief or physical or mental disability.
Selection procedures and criteria ensure that individuals are selected and promoted on the basis of their relevant
merits and abilities. These procedures are monitored and regularly reviewed.
Where necessary, the Company provides staff with ongoing professional development to enable them to
compete or qualify for positions, or to progress, within the Company.

Wessex Water Services Ltd
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The Modern Slavery Act 2015
Wessex Water is committed to meeting the aims of the Modern Slavery Act 2015. We strongly oppose
slavery and human trafficking in our supply chains and in any part of our business. To be trusted to do the
right thing is one of our core values. We would never knowingly engage with suppliers or contractors
involved in slavery or human trafficking. In accordance with the requirements of the Act we have published
on our website a Slavery and human trafficking statement 2016 signed by the chief executive and we have
provided a prominent link to the statement on the home page.

Environmental Policy
Wessex Water Services Ltd protects conserves and improves the environment and operates in a socially
responsible manner. Working practices are continually revised as improved techniques and technologies
become available. The environment policy is reviewed annually.

Research and Development
The Company carried out research and development in support of existing activities to improve the reliability
and effectiveness of water and waste water services.

Market Value of Land and Buildings
In the opinion of the Directors, the market value of land and buildings of the Company exceeds the book
value of these assets at 31 March 2016.

Supplier Payment Policy
The policy in respect of suppliers is to agree the payment terms for transactions in advance and to make
payments in accordance with those terms. At 31 March 2016 trade creditors represented approximately 32
days trade purchases (2015 – 31 days).
The Company does not follow any specific external code or standard on payment policy.

Charitable Donations
During the year £438,500 was donated to UK charities (2015 – £450,000) of which £317,900 (2015 –
£325,000) was donated to local debt advice agencies to help provide debt and financial advice to customers
in our area who are struggling to pay their water bills.

Disclosure of Information to Auditor
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and each
Director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Director to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor
A resolution to re-appointment KPMG LLP as auditor of the Company will be put to the forthcoming Board
meeting.
By order of the Board
Leigh Fisher-Hoyle – General Counsel
Claverton Down
Bath BA2 7WW
8 July 2016
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Company non-statutory accounts in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare Company non-statutory accounts for each financial year.
Under that law they have elected to prepare the non-statutory accounts in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU and applicable law.
Under company law the Directors must not approve the non-statutory accounts unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of their profit or loss for that period.
In preparing the Company non-statutory accounts, the Directors are required to:


select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;



make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;



state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU; and



prepare the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and enable them to ensure that its non-statutory accounts comply with the Companies Act
2006, as if those requirements were to apply to the Company. They have general responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors have decided to prepare voluntarily a Directors’ Remuneration Report in accordance with
Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 made under the Companies Act 2006, as if those requirements were to apply to the Company. The
Directors have also decided to prepare voluntarily a Corporate Governance Statement in line with the
guidance issued by Ofwat.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
We consider the annual report and non-statutory accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s position
and performance, business model and strategy.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Directors of Wessex Water
Services Limited
Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit
1 Our opinion on the non-statutory accounts is unmodified
We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Wessex Water Services Limited for the year ended 31 March
2016 set out on pages 45 to 80. These non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in
note 1.1 to the non-statutory accounts. In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:


give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of its profit
for the year then ended;



have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU); and



have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as if those
requirements were to apply.

2 Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
In arriving at our audit opinion above on the non-statutory accounts, the risks of material misstatement that
had the greatest effect on our audit, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows (unchanged
from 2015):
Classification of costs between operating expenditure and capital expenditure £210.8m (2015: £207.9m)
Refer to page 14 (Report from the Audit Committee), page 51 (accounting policy), page 62 (financial
disclosures).
The risk – The Company incurs a high level of expenditure on PPE (“Property, Plant and Equipment”),
including repair and maintenance, and enhancement costs. There is a high degree of judgement
involved in determining whether costs, both initial and subsequent expenditure, including employee and
other internal expenditure, on both infrastructure and non-infrastructure assets, meet the relevant
criteria for capitalisation (directly attributable to the asset, provide probable economic benefit and can be
measured reliably) and therefore are included in the carrying amount of PPE, or alternatively should be
expensed immediately. Due to the significant impact of the decision to classify expenses as operating or
capital on both the Company’s profit and the balance sheet this is one of the key judgemental areas in
our audit.
Our response – Our audit procedures included the assessment of the Company’s capitalisation policy
against the requirements of the accounting standards. Our controls testing included selecting a sample
of projects which were in progress throughout the financial year to check that the classification of
expenditure is subject to review and authorisation from the appropriate level within the business
hierarchy. Our substantive testing assessed the judgements regarding capitalisation of costs made over
this sample of projects and we challenged the level of capitalisation based on the Company’s
accounting policies, our knowledge of the sector and underlying nature of the projects. We compared
the level of employee and other internal expenditure capitalised against prior year balances and current
year budget information to identify material changes in the nature or quantum of costs capitalised, with
any significant movements corroborated and investigated.
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Provision for bad debt £45.9m (2015: £41.3m)
Refer to page 14 (Report from the Audit Committee), page 55 (accounting policy), page 77 (financial
disclosures).
The risk – The provision for doubtful debts is a significant risk area due in part to the statutory
requirement to provide water to customers who will be unable to pay, but also as a result of the complex
assumptions in relation to the percentage of debtors in each ageing category that require provision, its
subjective nature, and because of its size.
The provision methodology is described in note 1.15 to the accounts and is based upon two key
components, the ageing of the debtors and the differing payment types. The differing payment types
include, among others, direct debit, standing order and pay books. The method of payment affects the
provision as historical experience indicates that the risk profile differs based upon the payment type.
The Directors are required to make assumptions to determine the percentage of debtors that require
provision in each ageing and payment category. Those assumptions are based upon historical cash
collection trends, economic trends and pricing levels. An inappropriate choice of percentage or error in
the mathematical application of the methodology could result in a material variance in the level of
provision required.
Our response – Our audit procedures included testing controls over the interface between the billing
system and the accounting system by critically analysing the service auditor report of the billing system.
We evaluated the service auditor on how that would impact the effective operation of the controls within
the Company. These evaluations were also assisted by our own IT specialists who checked all
appropriate information and data had been transferred from the billing system to the Company
accounting system accurately and completely. This also included a consideration of whether the
different payment types are correctly processed in the billing system. We then tested the completeness
and accuracy of the data extracted from the billing system used to calculate the provision by agreeing
the total to the underlying accounting records and for a sample of debts, we also verified the accuracy of
the outstanding amounts and the corresponding payment methods, based on customer invoice. Our
audit procedures also included a recalculation of the bad debt provision to test the mathematical
accuracy.
In addition, through the performance of sensitivity analysis, we challenged the Directors’ assumptions
over the percentages applied to each ageing category and payment profile, based on our review of
historical trends, operational performance, historic write-offs, economic trends, pricing levels and the
level of provisioning across the industry obtained through a KPMG bad debt benchmarking exercise that
is performed across the sector.
We have also considered the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures about the degree of estimation
uncertainty involved in calculating the provision.
Accuracy of the pension assumptions in relation to the defined benefit scheme and their impact on the
pension liability - £139.8m (2015: £140.2m)
Refer to page 14 (Report from the Audit Committee), page 53 (accounting policy), page 66 (financial
disclosures).
The risk – Significant assumptions are made in valuing the Company’s defined benefit liability, as
described in note 16 to the accounts. The risk is that the assumptions used around key areas such as
discount rates, retail price index, mortality rates and the expected return on equities are outside of an
acceptable range, which could lead to over-or-understatement of the liability with a corresponding effect
on total comprehensive income.
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Our response - Our audit procedures included an assessment, with the assistance of our own actuarial
specialists, of whether the assumptions used, in particular the discount rate, retail price index, mortality
rates and expected return on equities, were within an acceptable range by comparison against external
market data and assumptions made across a range of similar schemes. We have also considered
whether the actuarial calculations based on the assumptions of the directors, were based on the
appropriate scheme assets and liabilities. We have agreed scheme assets to independent
confirmations. We have also considered the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures in respect of the
sensitivity of the deficit to changes in the assumptions.

3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit
Materiality for the non-statutory accounts as a whole was set at £10.9m (2015: £12.2m) determined with
reference to a benchmark of the Company’s profit before tax (of which it represents 7% (2015: 7%)).
We report to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £550,000
(2015: £610,000), in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.
Our audit of the Company was undertaken to the materiality level specified above and was all performed at
the Company’s head office in Bath.

4 Our opinion on the Directors’ Remuneration Report is unmodified
In addition to our audit of the non-statutory accounts, the Directors have engaged us to audit the information
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited, which the Directors have
decided to prepare as if the Company were required to comply with the requirements of Schedule 8 to The
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008 No.
410) made under the Companies Act 2006.
In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report which we were engaged to audit has been
properly prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 made under the Companies Act 2006, as if those requirements
were to apply to the Company.

5 We have nothing to report on the disclosures of principal risks
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to
in relation to:


the Directors’ Viability Statement on page 37, concerning the principal risks, their management,
and, based on that, the Directors’ assessment and expectations of the Company’s continuing in
operation over the 3 years to 2019; or



the disclosures in note 1 of the non-statutory accounts concerning the use of the going concern
basis of accounting.

6 We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required to
report by exception
Under ISAs (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during
our audit, we have identified other information in the annual report that contains a material inconsistency with
either that knowledge or the non-statutory accounts, a material misstatement of fact, or that is otherwise
misleading.

In particular, we are required to report to you if:
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we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during our audit
and the Directors’ statement that they consider that the annual report and non-statutory accounts
taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy; or



the Audit Committee report does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the
Audit Committee.

In addition to our audit of the non-statutory accounts, the Directors have engaged us to review their
Corporate Governance Statement in line with the guidance issued by Ofwat.
We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities.

Scope and responsibilities
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 40, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the non-statutory accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate. This report is made solely to the Company’s members
as a body and is subject to important explanations and disclaimers regarding our responsibilities, published
on our website at www.kpmg.com/uk/auditscopeukco2014b, which are incorporated into this report as if set out in
full and should be read to provide an understanding of the purpose of this report, the work we have
undertaken and the basis of our opinions.
Andrew Campbell-Orde (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
100 Temple Street
Bristol
BS1 6AG
8 July 2016
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Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Revenue

Note

2016
£m

2015
£m

1,2

520.8

540.3

(31.4)
(56.5)
(101.0)
(97.7)

(32.4)
(60.2)
(99.7)
(99.6)

Raw materials and consumables used
Staff costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses
Total expenses

3

(286.6)

(291.9)

Operating profit

2

234.2

248.4

Financial income
Financial expenses

6
6

0.8
(75.4)

0.4
(77.0)

Net financing expense

(74.6)

(76.6)

Profit before tax
Taxation

159.6
4.6

171.8
(31.1)

164.2

140.7

Profit for the year
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2016
£m

2015
£m

Profit for the year

164.2

140.7

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability
Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss

0.2

(52.7)

0.1

10.5

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of
income tax

0.3

(42.2)

Total comprehensive income for the year

164.5

98.5
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Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2016

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Note

2016
£m

2015
£m

9
10

3,344.1
-

3,237.9
-

3,344.1

3,237.9

7.1
170.5
95.3

6.6
171.0
47.0

272.9

224.6

3,617.0

3,462.5

(4.5)
(188.4)

(4.1)
(171.4)

(192.9)

(175.5)

(1,947.1)
(0.3)
(141.0)
(243.8)
(0.2)
(343.7)

(1,890.8)
(0.4)
(141.4)
(209.1)
(2.0)
(375.8)

(2,676.1)

(2,619.5)

(2,869.0)

(2,795.0)

11
12
13

Total assets
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables

Non-current liabilities
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Other payables
Employee benefits
Deferred income
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities

14
14
15

14
15
16
17
18
19

Total liabilities

Net assets

2

748.0

667.5

Equity
Share capital
Retained earnings

20

748.0

667.5

748.0

667.5

Total equity

The notes on pages 50 to 80 form an integral part of these non-statutory financial statements.
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 July 2016 and were signed on its
behalf by:
Colin Skellett – Chief Executive
Company registered number: 2366648
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2016
Share
capital
£m

Retained
earnings
£m

Total
equity
£m

Balance at 1 April 2014

81.3

601.3

682.6

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

-

140.7
(42.2)

140.7
(42.2)

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

98.5

98.5

(81.3)
-

81.3
(113.6)

(113.6)

(81.3)

(32.3)

(113.6)

Balance at 31 March 2015

-

667.5

667.5

Balance at 1 April 2015

-

667.5

667.5

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

-

164.2
0.3

164.2
0.3

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

164.5

164.5

-

(84.0)

(84.0)

-

(84.0)

(84.0)

-

748.0

748.0

Note

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in
equity
Share capital reduction
Dividends
Total contributions by and distributions to owners

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in
equity
Dividends
Total contributions by and distributions to owners
Balance at 31 March 2016

20
8

8

Included in retained earnings are £562.4m of un-distributable reserves (2015 - £553.8m) created on first time
adoption of IFRS when restating infrastructure assets to fair value (see note 20).
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2016
2016
£m

2015
£m

164.2

140.7

101.0
(0.8)
75.4
(4.6)

99.7
(0.4)
77.0
31.1

335.2

348.1

0.5
(0.5)
1.9
(7.2)

2.7
(0.2)
21.4
(5.4)

(5.3)

18.5

Tax paid

(13.8)

(9.7)

Net cash from operating activities

316.1

356.9

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from infrastructure charges and capital contributions

1.2
0.8
(177.4)
10.9

0.8
0.3
(182.8)
6.1

Net cash from investing activities

(164.5)

(175.6)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from new loan
Interest paid
Repayment of borrowings
Payment of finance lease liabilities
Dividends paid

50.0
(61.0)
(4.1)
(88.2)

100.0
(57.0)
(100.0)
(30.7)
(115.2)

Net cash from financing activities

(103.3)

(202.9)

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

48.3
47.0

(21.6)
68.6

95.3

47.0

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Financial income
Financial expense
Taxation

Decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase) in inventories
Increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease) in provisions and employee benefits

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1.

Accounting Policies

1.1

Basis of preparation

Wessex Water Services Ltd is a Company incorporated and domiciled in the UK.
The Company’s non-statutory financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs”).
The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.
Judgements made by the Directors, in the application of these accounting policies, that have significant
effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year
are discussed in note 28.
Group accounts have not been prepared as under section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company and
its subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements of Wessex Water Ltd (see note 26).
The non-statutory accounts do not constitute the Company's statutory accounts for the years ended 31
March 2016 or 2015. 31 March 2016 is not the accounting reference date for the Company. The latest
statutory accounts of the Company were for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014. Both these
statutory accounts have been delivered to the Registrar of Companies. The auditor has reported on both
these statutory accounts; the reports were unqualified and did not contain a statement under section 498 (2)
or (3) of the Companies Act 2006. The next statutory accounts of the Company will be prepared for the year
ending 30 June 2016.
As explained on page 38, these non-statutory accounts have been prepared by the Directors for the same
period as the regulatory Annual Performance Report which have to be prepared for the 12-month period
ending 31 March each year in order to allow a user of the regulatory Annual Performance Report to reconcile
them to historical cost accounts of the Company.

1.2

Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis. Non-current assets and disposal groups
held for sale are stated at the lower of previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

1.3

Going concern

The Directors have considered the financial position of the Company and have concluded that they will be
able to meet their liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future. For these purposes the foreseeable
future is taken to mean a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these accounts.

1.4

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement.
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1

Accounting policies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

1.5

Financial instruments

Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less any provision for impairment. Those held as current
assets are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the cash flow statement.

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.

1.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
Infrastructure assets have been revalued to fair value on 1 April 2013, the date of transition to Adopted
IFRSs, and are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount at the date of that
revaluation.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items of property, plant and equipment.
Leases in which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased
asset are classified as finance leases. Where land and buildings are held under leases the accounting
treatment of the land is considered separately from that of the buildings.
Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated
depreciation and less accumulated impairment losses.
Under IFRIC 18 sewers adopted at nil cost to the Company are included in fixed assets at a fair value, which
is cost of construction and depreciated at the same rate as infrastructure assets.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives
are as follows:


Buildings and operational assets

15 to 80 years



Infrastructure assets

108 years



Plant, machinery and vehicles

3 to 30 years



Other assets

4 to 15 years

Infrastructure assets comprise eight components whose weighted average life is 108 years:
Impounding reservoirs 150 years, raw water mains 100 years, treated water mains 100 years,
communication pipes 60 years, sewers 125 years, sewage pumping stations 60 years, combined sewer
overflows 80 years and sea outfalls 60 years.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

1.7

Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill
Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units and is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment.

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

1.8

Investment property

Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or
for both. Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

1.9

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the first-in first-out
principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and
other costs in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories
and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.

1.10

Impairment excluding inventories and deferred tax assets

Financial assets (including receivables)
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective
evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss
event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.10

Impairment (continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the
unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the
decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each
year at the same time.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset.

1.11

Employee benefits

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits
are calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair
value of any plan assets are deducted. The Company determines the net interest on the net defined benefit
liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability.
The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the
income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.
Re-measurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses and the return on
plan assets. The Company recognises them immediately in other comprehensive income and all other
expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee benefit expenses in profit or loss.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.11

Employee benefits (continued)

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit
related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs.
The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to
the present value of benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions and takes into account the adverse effect of any minimum funding requirements.
The Company’s employees are members of the Wessex Water Ltd Group pension scheme. The Company
recognises a cost equal to its contribution payable for the period. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group. The scheme has been closed to new members since 2009.

Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash
bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment transactions
YTL Power International Berhad operates an equity settled share-based payment scheme for the employees
of the group. The fair value of the share-based payment awards is recognised as an expense over the period
of the award. The amount recognised is adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards for which service and
performance conditions are met at the vesting date. Where YTL Power International Berhad grants rights to
its equity instruments to the Company’s employees, they are accounted for as equity settled in the
consolidated accounts. In the Company accounts they are accounted for as a charge to the profit and loss
account and an inter-company liability.

1.12

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific to the liability.

1.13

Revenue

Turnover represents income receivable in the ordinary course of business, excluding VAT, for services
provided. Turnover is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
Company. For measured customers turnover includes an estimate of the sales value of units consumed
between the last meter reading and the end of the period. Where premises are unoccupied or where no
services are provided, charges are not raised and no turnover is recognised.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.14

Deferred income

Grants and contributions in respect of specific expenditure on non-infrastructure fixed assets are treated as
deferred income and recognised in the profit and loss account over the expected useful economic lives of the
related assets.
Grants and contributions relating to infrastructure assets are amortised over 108 years (see 1.6).
Under IFRIC 18 sewers adopted at nil cost to the Company are shown in deferred income at a fair value,
which is cost of construction, and amortised at the same rate as infrastructure assets are depreciated.

1.15

Bad Debt policy

Debt is written off for one of four reasons;


It is considered or known to be uncollectible



It is considered uneconomic to collect



Older debt is written off by agreement with the customer in return for the receipt of monthly
payments to pay-off current year debt as part of our “Restart” and “Restart Plus” policies



Write off is ordered by the County Court. In these cases the Court may set payment at a proportion
of the outstanding debt. When this level of payment is reached the Court will instruct that the rest is
to be written off.

The policy for calculating the bad debt provision is to analyse the outstanding debt between payment
categories and to make provision according to the historical non collection rate for that payment category.
The categories selected are direct debit, instalments, standing orders, DSS, bankruptcy and all other. The
profile of provision differs between categories, but for all categories debt that is four years old is fully
provided.

1.16

Expenses

Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part
of the total lease expense.

Finance lease payments
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Financing income and expenses
Financing expenses comprise interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as liabilities and finance
leases recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on
provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that are recognised in the income statement (see foreign
currency accounting policy).
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.16

Expenses (continued)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
takes a substantial time to be prepared for use, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Financing
income comprises interest receivable on funds invested, dividend income, and net foreign exchange gains.
Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest
method. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement on the date the entity’s right to receive
payments is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

1.17

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary
differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

1.18

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets containing a non-current asset (a disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing
use, it is available for immediate sale and sale is highly probable within one year.
A discontinued operation is a component of the Company’s business that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. When an operation is
classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative income statement is restated as if the operation has
been discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

1.19

Dividends

Dividends are proposed by the board and immediately afterwards are authorised by the shareholder, and are
therefore recognised as a liability in the accounts until paid.
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1

Accounting policies (continued)

1.20

Adopted IFRS not yet applied

The following Adopted IFRS’s have been issued but have not been applied in these financial statements:


IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Mandatory for years commencing on or after 1 January 2018)



IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (Mandatory for years commencing on or after 1 January
2016)



IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Mandatory for years commencing on or after 1
January 2017)



IFRS 16 Leases (Mandatory for years commencing on or after 1 January 2019)



Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 28 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation



Amendment to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations



Annual improvements to IFRS’s 2012-14 Cycle (mandatory for years commencing on or after 1
January 2016)



Disclosure initiative – Amendments to IAS 1 (mandatory for years commencing on or after 1
January 2016).

The Company does not currently expect that adoption of these standards will have a significant effect on the
results or financial position of the Company, but may affect disclosure requirements.
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2.

Segmental Analysis

Turnover
Regulated
Unregulated

Operating profit
Regulated
Unregulated

Net assets
Regulated
Unregulated

3.

2016
£m

2015
£m

513.0
7.8

532.9
7.4

520.8

540.3

234.2
-

248.4
-

234.2

248.4

748.0
-

667.5
-

748.0

667.5

11.6
0.1

12.1
0.1

2016
£000

2015
£000

156
10
15

156
10
49
167

181

382

Expenses and Auditor’s Remuneration

Included in profit are the following:
Impairment loss on other trade receivables and prepayments
Research and development expensed as incurred

Auditor’s remuneration:
Audit of these financial statements
Taxation compliance services
AMP6 price review services
Other costs

Wessex Water Services Ltd

58

Non-statutory Accounts

4.

Staff Numbers and Costs

The average number of employees (including Directors) during the year was as follows:

Number of
employees
2015
2016
Average number of employees

1,984

1,915

2016
£m

2015
£m

69.2
6.7
12.2

71.8
6.4
10.4

88.1

88.6

31.6
56.5

28.4
60.2

88.1

88.6

2016
£000

2015
£000

Total Directors’ remuneration including benefits in kind

1,289

1,147

Remuneration of highest paid Director

602

509

The aggregate payroll costs of these employees was:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

These costs were allocated as follows:
Capital schemes
Operating expenses

5.

Directors’ Remuneration

Details of Directors’ remuneration can be found in the Remuneration Committee Report (see page 21).
Directors’ remuneration is in respect of two Executive Directors, four Non-Executive Directors and five YTL
appointed Directors (2015 - two Executive Directors, five Non-Executive Directors and five YTL appointed
Directors).
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6.

Finance Income and Expense
2016
£m

2015
£m

Interest receivable on short-term bank deposits

0.8

0.4

Total finance income

0.8

0.4

(65.4)
(4.7)
(5.3)

(69.9)
(4.2)
(2.9)

(75.4)

(77.0)

(74.6)

(76.6)

Recognised in the income statement
Finance income

Finance expense
To fellow subsidiary undertakings
Net interest on net defined benefit pension plan liability
On bank loans and leases

Net interest payable

In accordance with IAS 23 borrowing costs of £1.5m (2015 - £2.4m) associated with the funding of eligible
capital projects have been capitalised at an interest rate of 3.9% (2015 – 4.0%).

7.

Taxation
2016
£m

2015
£m

28.0
(0.7)
27.3

16.7
(3.9)
12.8

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Reduction in tax rate
Adjustments for prior years
Deferred tax (credit) / expense

5.4
(38.2)
0.9
(31.9)

17.7
0.6
18.3

Tax (credit) / expense in income statement

(4.6)

31.1

Re-measurements of defined benefit liability
Change in tax rate

2016
£m
0.1
-

2015
£m
10.5
-

Tax credit

0.1

10.5

Recognised in the income statement
Current tax expense
Current year
Adjustments for prior years
Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
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7.

Taxation (continued)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit for the year
Total tax (credit) / expense

2016
£m
164.2
(4.6)

2015
£m
140.7
31.1

Profit excluding taxation:

159.6

171.8

Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 20% (2015 - 21%)
Reduction of tax rate on deferred tax balances
Non-deductible expenses
Under / (over) provided in prior years
Group relief for nil consideration
Other

31.9
(38.2)
0.1
0.1
(1.2)
2.7

36.1
0.2
(3.3)
(1.4)
(0.5)

Total tax (credit) / expense

(4.6)

31.1

Reductions in the UK corporation tax rate from 20% to 19% (effective from 1 April 2017) and 18% (effective
from 1 April 2020) were substantively enacted on 26 October 2015. A further reduction to the UK corporation
tax rate was announced in the 2016 Budget to further reduce the tax rate to 17% (to be effective from 1 April
2020). This will reduce the Company's future current tax charge accordingly. The deferred tax liability at the
balance sheet date has been calculated based on the rate of 18% substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

8.

Dividends

The dividend policy is to declare dividends consistent with the Company’s performance and prudent
management of the economic risk of the business.

Final dividend for the previous year
Dividends for the current year

2016
£m

2015
£m

84.0

8.0
105.6

84.0

113.6

In April 2016 a final dividend of £10.0m was declared in respect of the financial year just ended.
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9.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Land &
buildings
£m

Infrastructure
assets
£m

Plant,
equipment
& vehicles
£m

Office & IT
equipment
£m

Company
total
£m

Cost
Balance at 1 April 2014
Additions
Disposals

823.0
25.6
(0.4)

1,817.0
95.9
(1.5)

1,416.5
79.4
(24.5)

29.5
7.0
(8.0)

4,086.0
207.9
(34.4)

Balance at 31 March 2015

848.2

1,911.4

1,471.4

28.5

4,259.5

Balance at 1 April 2015
Additions
Disposals

848.2
5.3
(1.0)

1,911.4
90.7
(1.5)

1,471.4
107.3
(12.5)

28.5
7.5
-

4,259.5
210.8
(15.0)

Balance at 31 March 2016

852.5

2,000.6

1,566.2

36.0

4,455.3

Depreciation and impairment
Balance at 1 April 2014
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment losses
Reversal of impairment losses
Disposals

(239.7)
(14.2)
0.3

(15.5)
(16.5)
-

(679.6)
(66.2)
23.2

(18.7)
(2.7)
8.0

(953.5)
(99.6)
31.5

Balance at 31 March 2015

(253.6)

(32.0)

(722.6)

(13.4)

(1,021.6)

Balance at 1 April 2015
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment losses
Reversal of impairment losses
Disposals

(253.6)
(13.9)
0.5

(32.0)
(17.2)
-

(722.6)
(67.9)
11.5

(13.4)
(2.6)
-

(1,021.6)
(101.6)
12.0

Balance at 31 March 2016

(267.0)

(49.2)

(779.0)

(16.0)

(1,111.2)

At 1 April 2014

583.3

1,801.5

736.9

10.8

3,132.5

At 31 March 2015

594.6

1,879.4

748.8

15.1

3,237.9

At 31 March 2016

585.5

1,951.4

787.2

20.0

3,344.1

Net Book Value

Assets under construction included in the values above were £177.0m (2015 - £153.9m).
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9.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems of mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw
water storage reservoirs, dams, sludge pipelines, sea outfalls and infrastructure investigations and studies.
Included in infrastructure assets at 1 April 2014 is £705.1m fair value adjustment on first time adoption of
IFRS.
There is no impairment loss recognised in these financial statements (2015 - £nil).
At 31 March 2016 the net carrying amount of leased plant and machinery was £14.6m (2015 - £20.0m). The
leased equipment secures lease obligations (see note 14).
Cumulative borrowing costs capitalised and included above were £4.6m (2015 - £3.2m).
Included in freehold land and buildings above is an amount of £12.3m (2015 - £12.1m) in respect of land
which is not depreciated.

10.

Investments in Subsidiaries

The Company has an investment of £13,000 (2015 – £13,000) in 100% of the ordinary share capital of a
subsidiary company Wessex Water Services Finance Plc.

11.

Inventories

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress

2016
£m

2015
£m

3.3
3.8
7.1

3.1
3.5
6.6

Raw materials, consumables and work in progress recognised as cost of sales in the year amounted to
£5.2m (2015 - £4.3m). There was no write-down of inventories to net realisable value in either year.

12.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables (note 21b)
Owed by fellow subsidiary company
Prepayments and accrued income
Other debtors

2016
£m

2015
£m

55.8
37.0
71.8
5.9
170.5

58.5
33.7
73.2
5.6
171.0

Trade receivables are expected to be recovered in no more than 12 months.
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13.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Short-term bank deposits
Cash at bank

14.

2016
£m

2015
£m

43.3
52.0
95.3

35.0
12.0
47.0

Other Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Company’s interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, which are measured at amortised cost. For more information about the Company’s exposure to
interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note 21.

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans
Finance lease liabilities
Inter-company loans
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft
Current portion of finance lease liabilities

2016
£m

2015
£m

365.0
11.9
1,570.2
1,947.1

315.0
16.4
1,559.4
1,890.8

4.5
4.5

4.1
4.1

Terms and debt repayment schedule

Currency

Bank loans

Sterling

Inter-company
loans
Bond
Bond
Bond
Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond

Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling

Nominal
interest
rate

Year
of
maturity
20182024

5.375%
5.75%
4.00%
4.00%
3.52%
2.186%
1.75%
1.75%
1.369%
1.374%
1.489%
1.495%
1.499%

2028
2033
2021
2021
2023
2039
2046
2051
2057
2057
2058
2058
2058

Face
value
2016
£m

Carrying
amount
2016
£m

Face
value
2015
£m

Carrying
amount
2015
£m

365.0

365.0

315.0

315.0

198.7
346.9
198.5
105.1
74.2
60.8
99.7
99.8
99.7
99.8
62.8
62.8
62.8
1,936.6

198.3
345.9
198.5
105.1
74.2
60.8
99.7
99.8
99.7
99.8
62.8
62.8
62.8
1,935.2

198.6
346.7
198.3
106.0
72.8
60.1
98.0
98.0
98.0
98.0
62.0
62.1
62.1
1,875.7

198.3
345.7
198.3
106.0
72.8
60.1
98.0
98.0
98.0
98.0
62.0
62.1
62.1
1,874.4
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14

Other interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings (continued)

Finance lease liabilities
Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:
Minimum
lease
payments
2016
£m
Less than one year
Between one and five
years
More than five years

Interest

Principal

2016
£m

2016
£m

Minimum
lease
payments
2015
£m

Interest

Principal

2015
£m

2015
£m

5.3

(0.8)

4.5

5.0

(0.9)

4.1

12.8
-

(0.9)
-

11.9
-

18.1
-

(1.7)
-

16.4
-

18.1

(1.7)

16.4

23.1

(2.6)

20.5
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15.

Trade and Other Payables

Current
Amounts payable to subsidiary company
Amounts payable to other group companies
Amounts owed to associate companies
Trade payables
Dividend
Other creditors
Corporation tax
Taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income

Non-current
Other payables

16.

2016
£m

2015
£m

19.2
0.6
1.1
27.8
17.5
2.1
16.3
2.0
101.8

19.0
0.6
1.3
24.0
21.7
2.4
2.8
2.1
97.5

188.4

171.4

0.3

0.4

188.7

171.8

Employee Benefits

Pension plans

a.

2016
£m

2015
£m

Fair value of scheme assets

521.1

528.3

Present value of defined benefit obligations

(660.9)

(668.5)

Net (liability) for defined benefit obligations

(139.8)

(140.2)

Unfunded and compensatory added years pension

(1.2)

(1.2)

Total employee benefits

(141.0)

(141.4)

The Company sponsors a funded defined benefit pension plan for qualifying UK employees. The plan is
administered by a separate Board of Trustees which is legally separate from the Company. The
Trustees are composed of representatives of both the employer and employees. The Trustees are
required by law to act in the interest of all relevant beneficiaries and are responsible for the investment
policy with regard to the assets plus the day to day administration of the benefits.
Under the plan, employees are entitled to annual pensions on retirement using an accrual rate, final
pensionable salary and service. Benefits are also payable on death and following other events such as
withdrawing from active service.
No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees.
Liabilities for an unfunded arrangement and a compensatory payment for added years’ service are held
outside the defined benefit scheme. The Company also operates a defined contribution section within
the main pension scheme.
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16 Employee benefits (continued)
b. Profile of the Scheme
The defined benefit obligation includes benefits for current employees, former employees and current
pensioners. Broadly, about 37% of the liabilities are attributable to current employees, 15% to former
employees and 48% to current pensioners.
The scheme duration is an indicator of the weighted-average time until benefit payments are made. For
the scheme as a whole, the duration is around 18 years reflecting the approximate split of the defined
benefit obligation between current employees (duration of 25 years), deferred members (duration of 25
years) and current pensioners (duration of 12 years).
c.

Funding requirements
UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently. The last funding valuation of the
scheme was carried out by a qualified actuary as at 30 September 2013 and showed a deficit of
£94.6m. The Company is paying deficit contributions of:


£8.6M by 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015;



£7.6M by each 31 March, from 31 March 2016 to 31 March 2020 inclusive;



£10.2M by each 31 March, from 31 March 2021 to 31 March 2024 inclusive;

which, along with investment returns from return-seeking assets, is expected to make good this shortfall
by 31 March 2024.
The next funding valuation is due no later than 30 September 2016 at which progress towards fullfunding will be reviewed.
The Company also pays contributions of 18.2% of pensionable salaries in respect of current accrual and
non-investment related expenses, with active members paying a further 7.3% of pensionable salaries
on average. A contribution of £7.6m is expected to be paid by the Company during the year ending on
31 March 2017.
d. Risks associated with the scheme
Asset volatility - The liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond
yields; if assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The scheme holds a significant
proportion of growth assets (equities, diversified growth fund and global absolute return fund) which,
though expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long-term, create volatility and risk in the shortterm. The allocation to growth assets is monitored to ensure it remains appropriate given the scheme's
long term objectives.
Changes in bond yields - A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the
scheme's liabilities for accounting purposes, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the
value of the Scheme’s bond holdings.
Inflation risk - The majority of the scheme’s benefit obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation
will lead to higher liabilities (although, in most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in
place to protect against extreme inflation). The majority of the assets are either unaffected by or only
loosely correlated with inflation, meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase the deficit.
Life expectancy - The majority of the scheme’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the
member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the liabilities.
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16 Employee benefits (continued)
The Trustees insure certain benefits payable on death before retirement.
A contingent liability exists in relation to the equalisation of Guaranteed Minimum Pension ("GMP"). The
UK Government intends to implement legislation which could result in an increase in the value of GMP
for males. This would increase the defined benefit obligation of the plan. At this stage, it is not possible
to quantify the impact of this change.
e. Reporting at 31 March 2016
The results of the latest funding valuation at 30 September 2013 have been adjusted to the balance
sheet date taking account of experience over the period since 30 September 2013, changes in market
conditions, and differences in the financial and demographic assumptions. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit
Cost Method.
The principal assumptions used to calculate the liabilities under IAS 19 are set out below:
The actuarial valuation described above has been updated at 31 March 2016 by a qualified actuary
using revised assumptions that are consistent with the requirements of IAS 19. Investments have been
valued, for this purpose, at fair value. The major assumptions used by the actuary were:

Rate of increase in salaries – year 1
Rate of increase in salaries – year 2
Rate of increase in salaries – years 3 and 4
Rate of increase in salaries – years 3 to 5
Rate of increase in salaries – long term
Rate of increase in pensions in payment
Rate of increase in pensions in payment - reduced level
members
Discount rate
Inflation assumption – RPI
Inflation assumption – CPI

31.03.16

31.03.15

1.0%
2.8%
3.0%
n/a
3.5%
2.0% or 2.9%

1.25%
0.75%
n/a
2.5%
3.5%
2.0% or 2.9%

2.1%
3.4%
3.0%
2.0%

2.2%
3.3%
3.0%
2.0%

Mortality assumptions:
The mortality assumptions are based upon the recent actual mortality experience of scheme members,
and allow for expected future improvements in mortality rates. The assumptions are that a member
currently aged 60 will live, on average, for a further 27.0 years (2015 – 27.2 years) if they are male, and
for a further 29.3 years (2015 – 29.5 years) if they are female. For a member who retires in 2035 at age
60 the assumptions are that they will live, on average, for a further 28.4 years (2015 – 28.8 years) after
retirement if they are male, and a further 30.9 years (2015 – 31.1 years) after retirement if they are
female.
The mortality table adopted is based upon 95% of standard tables S1P(M/F)A adjusted to allow for
individual years of birth. Future improvements are assumed to be in line with the CMI 2015 projection,
with a long term improvement rate of 1.0% p.a. for all members.
Sensitivity analysis:
The key assumptions used for IAS 19 are: discount rate, inflation and mortality. If different assumptions
were used, this could have a material effect on the results disclosed. The sensitivity of the results to
these assumptions are set out below. For the purposes of these sensitivities, it has been assumed that
the change in discount rate and inflation has no impact on the value of scheme assets.
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16 Employee benefits (continued)
A reduction in the discount rate of 0.1% from 3.4% to 3.3% would increase the scheme liabilities by
£12.3m from £660.9m to £673.2m, increasing the scheme deficit to £152.1m.
An increase in the inflation assumption of 0.1% (from 2.0% to 2.1% for CPI and 3.0% to 3.1% for RPI)
would increase the scheme liabilities by £10.9m from £660.9m to £671.8m, increasing the scheme
deficit to £150.7m.
An increase in life expectancy of 1 year would increase the scheme liabilities by £22.6m from £660.9m
to £683.5m, increasing the scheme deficit to £162.4m.
The sensitivity information shown above has been prepared using the same method as adopted when
adjusting the results of the latest funding valuation to the balance sheet date. This is the same approach
as has been adopted in previous periods.
f.

The value of the assets as follows:
2016
£m
251.5
28.4
133.0
107.9
0.3

2015
£m
262.9
23.1
134.7
98.1
9.5

521.1

528.3

2016
£m

2015
£m

Operating cost – service cost
Current service cost
Administration expenses
Past service cost

11.5
0.4
0.7

9.8
0.4
0.6

Financing cost
Interest on net benefit liability

4.7

4.2

Pension expense recognised in profit and loss

17.3

15.0

21.0

(48.7)

Actuarial (gains) due to liability experience

(7.5)
(7.3)
(6.4)

106.3
(4.9)

Amount recognised in OCI

(0.2)

52.7

Equities
Property
Government Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Other

g. The amounts recognised in comprehensive income are set out below:

Re-measurements in OCI
Return on plan assets below / (in excess of) that recognised in net
interest
Actuarial (gains) / losses due to changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gains) due to changes in demographic assumptions

Total amount recognised in profit and loss and OCI
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16 Employee benefits (continued)
h. Changes to the present value of the defined benefit obligations during the year:

i.

2016
£m

2015
£m

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation
Contributions by scheme participants
Actuarial (gains) due to changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains) / losses due to changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gains) due to liability experience
Net benefits paid out

668.5
11.5
22.2
0.2
(7.3)
(7.5)
(6.4)
(21.0)

549.7
9.8
25.1
0.2
106.3
(4.9)
(18.3)

Past service cost

0.7

0.6

Closing defined benefit obligation

660.9

668.5

2016
£m

2015
£m

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Interest income on scheme assets
Re-measurement (losses) / gains on scheme assets
Contributions by employer
Contributions by scheme participants
Net benefits paid out

528.3
17.5
(21.0)
17.5
0.2
(21.0)

459.1
20.9
48.7
18.1
0.2
(18.3)

Administration costs incurred

(0.4)

(0.4)

Closing fair value of scheme assets

521.1

528.3

Additional analysis:

2016
£m

2015
£m

Actual return on scheme assets
Interest income on scheme assets

17.5

20.9

Re-measurement (losses) / gains on scheme assets

(21.0)

48.7

Actual return on scheme assets

(3.5)

69.6

Analysis of amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income
Total re-measurement gains / (losses)

0.2

(52.7)

Total gain / (loss)

0.2

(52.7)

Changes to the fair value of scheme assets during the year:
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16 Employee benefits (continued)
History of asset values, defined benefit obligations, deficit in the scheme and experience gains and
losses

Fair value of scheme assets

31.03.16
£m
521.1

31.03.15
£m
528.3

31.03.14
£m
459.1

31.03.13
£m
433.0

31.03.12
£m
390.9

Defined benefit obligation

(660.9)

(668.5)

(549.7)

(552.3)

(498.4)

(Deficit) in the scheme

(139.8)

(140.2)

(90.6)

(119.3)

(107.5)

(21.0)

48.7

6.4

4.9

Experience (losses) / gains on
scheme assets
Experience gains on
scheme liabilities

Defined contribution plans
The Group also operates a defined contribution pension plan.
The total expense relating to this plan in the current year was £1.8m (2015 - £1.4m).

Share-based payments
YTL Power International Berhad (a subsidiary of the ultimate parent company YTL Corporation Berhad)
operates share option schemes under which options are granted to employees of the Company. The current
scheme the “YTL Power International Berhad Employees Share Option Scheme 2011” first issued share
options to employees on 1 June 2012. The terms of the 2011 scheme are specified under the YTL Power
International Berhad Employees Share Option Scheme 2011 (2011 UK part) known as the “2011 UK Plan”.
The majority of options have been issued under terms approved by the Inland Revenue, the “Approved”
scheme, but some have been issued to senior employees under an “Unapproved” scheme. The options are
for ordinary shares of YTL Power International Berhad of Malaysian Ringgit RM0.50 each.
2011 UK Plan
The exercise price and fair value of the share options are as follows:
Granted – Ordinary shares of
RM0.50 each
01/06/2012 Unapproved
01/06/2012 Approved

Vesting date

Expiry date

01/06/2015
01/06/2015

31/03/2021
31/03/2021

Exercise
price RM
1.41
1.65

Fair value RM
0.22
0.16

Under FRS 20 equity settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value at the date of the grant,
and the fair value is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period. There was no charge
recognised in the profit and loss account for FRS 20 as the share options have passed their vesting date.
The key assumptions and options outstanding were as follows:
Weighted avg.
Expected
Scheme
share price at
volatility %
grant RM
01/06/2012 Unapproved
1.63
21.2
01/06/2012 Approved
1.63
21.2
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Expected
option life
years
3
3

Risk free
rate
%
3.14
3.14

Dividend
yield
%
5.6
5.6
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16 Employee benefits (continued)
Granted – Ordinary shares of
RM0.50 each
01/06/2012 Unapproved
01/06/2012 Approved

Outstanding at
31/3/2015
8,250,000
39,283,000

TOTAL

47,533,000

Granted

Forfeited

Exercised

-

(342,000)
(1,007,000)

(13,000)
(20,000)

Outstanding
at 31/3/2016
7,895,000
38,256,000

-

(1,349,000)

(33,000)

46,151,000

The share price at 31 March 2016 was RM1.48 or £0.27.

17.

Deferred Income
Above
ground
grants
£m

Below
ground
grants
£m

Sewer
adoptions
£m

Total
£m

Balance at 1 April 2014
Received during the year
Amortisation

8.2
(0.3)

146.2
6.4
(1.4)

24.9
25.5
(0.4)

179.3
31.9
(2.1)

Balance at 31 March 2015

7.9

151.2

50.0

209.1

Balance at 1 April 2015
Received during the year
Amortisation

7.9
2.6
(0.3)

151.2
8.7
(1.5)

50.0
25.8
(0.6)

209.1
37.1
(2.4)

Balance at 31 March 2016

10.2

158.4

75.2

243.8

18.

Provisions
Restructuring
costs
£m

Total
£m

Balance at 1 April 2015
Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year

2.0
(1.8)

2.0
(1.8)

Balance at 31 March 2016

0.2

0.2

Non-current
Current

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

The restructuring provision is in respect of a reorganisation announced before the prior year-end, delivering
efficiencies in the first year of the AMP 6 price review period and beyond. The majority of the reorganisation
was completed in the year.
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19.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Property, plant and equipment
Employee benefits
Provisions

Liabilities
2016
£m
537.8
(0.1)

2015
£m
566.4
(0.5)

Assets
2016
£m
(168.6)
(25.4)
-

Tax (assets) / liabilities

2015
£m
(159.1)
(31.0)
-

Net
2016
£m
369.2
(25.4)
(0.1)

2015
£m
407.3
(31.0)
(0.5)

537.7

565.9

(194.0)

(190.1)

343.7

375.8

Net of tax (assets) / liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

Net tax (assets) / liabilities

537.7

565.9

(194.0)

(190.1)

343.7

375.8

Movement in deferred tax during the year

Property, plant and
equipment
Employee benefits
Provisions

1 April
2015
£m

Recognised
in income
£m

Recognised
in equity
£m

31 March
2016
£m

407.3
(31.0)
(0.5)

(38.1)
5.7
0.4

(0.1)
-

369.2
(25.4)
(0.1)

375.8

(32.0)

(0.1)

343.7

Movement in deferred tax during the prior year

Property, plant and
equipment
Employee benefits
Provisions
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1 April 2014
£m

Recognised
in income
£m

Recognised
in equity
£m

31 March
2015
£m

389.5
(21.2)
(0.4)

17.8
0.7
(0.1)

(10.5)
-

407.3
(31.0)
(0.5)

367.9

18.4

(10.5)

375.8
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20.

Capital and Reserves

Issued at 1 April
Share capital reduction

2016
£
1
-

2015
£
81,350,000
(81,349,999)

Issued at 31 March

1

1

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1each

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Shares classified as liabilities
Shares classified in shareholders’ funds

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
On 30 March 2015 the Directors of the Company approved a capital reduction of 81,349,999 £1 ordinary
shares which increased retained earnings. To enable the capital reduction to be undertaken the Directors
prepared a Solvency Statement declaring that following the capital reduction the Company would be able to
meet its debts / liabilities as they fell due over the next 12 months.

Wessex Water Services Ltd

74

Non-statutory Accounts

20 Capital and reserves (continued)
Retained earnings
In the prior year within retained earnings, on first time adoption of IFRS, a reserve arose on restating
infrastructure assets to fair value. The gross reserve was £705.1m and net of deferred tax at 20% was
£564.1m. The calculation of the £705.1m on first time adoption of IFRS is shown below:
£m
March 2013 Regulatory Capital Value
Adjust for:
Stock
Debtors

(7.0)
(162.6)

Creditors less than one year

170.0
0.4

Creditors more than one year
Deferred income
Provisions
Pension liability

1.0
17.2
0.1
119.3

Unfunded pension liability

1.2
138.8

£m
2,733.0

0.4

138.8

Value attributed to fixed assets

2,872.2

Tangible fixed assets

2,167.1

Fair value uplift

705.1

21.

Financial Instruments

(a) Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arms-length transaction
between informed and willing parties, other than a forced or liquidation sale. The fair value of short term and
floating rate borrowings approximate to book value. The fair value of long term fixed rate borrowings has
been calculated using market values or discounted cash flow techniques.
The fair value of long term fixed rate borrowings are classified as level 1 in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy
and have a carrying value of £1,570.2m and a fair value of £1,872.4m. Short term and floating rate
borrowings have a carrying value and fair value of £381.4m.
The IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy is a categorisation relating to the extent that the fair value can be
determined by reference to comparable market values. The hierarchy ranges from level 1 where instruments
are quoted on an active market through to level 3 where the assumptions used to derive fair value do not
have comparable market data.
It is the Company’s policy to recognise all the transfers into the levels and transfers out of the levels at the
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. No liabilities are classified as level 2
or level 3.
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Financial instruments (continued)

The fair values of all financial assets and financial liabilities by class together with their carrying amounts
shown in the balance sheet are as follows:
Carrying
amount

Fair
Value

Level
1

Carrying
amount

Fair
Value

Level 1

2016
£m

2016
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

2015
£m

2015
£m

(95.3)

(95.3)

(95.3)

(47.0)

(47.0)

(47.0)

Total financial assets

(95.3)

(95.3)

(95.3)

(47.0)

(47.0)

(47.0)

Bank overdraft (note 14)
Other interest-bearing
loans and borrowings
(note 14)
Trade and other payables
(note 15)
Other financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost
(note 15)

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,951.6

2,253.8

2,253.8

1,894.9

2,512.1

2,512.1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total financial liabilities

1,951.6

2,253.8

2,253.8

1,894.9

2,512.1

2,512.1

Total financial instruments

1,856.3

2,158.5

2,158.5

1,847.9

2,465.1

2,465.1

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
(note 13)

(b) Credit risk

Financial risk management
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from
customers and investment securities.
Cash and cash equivalents are short term deposits with counterparties that have a credit rating of A1+/P1 or
A1/P1, and hence there is no exposure to credit risk for these values.

Cash and cash equivalents

2016
£m

2015
£m

95.3

47.0

95.3

47.0

The concentration of credit risk for trade receivables at the balance sheet date by geographic
region was:
South West England

55.8

58.5

55.8

58.5
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Financial instruments (continued)

Trade receivables are from domestic and business customers. No individual customer or industrial sector
has a material balance outstanding at either year end.
The aging of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was:
Gross
2016
£m
Less than 1 year
1 to 2 years
2 to 3 years
3 to 4 years
More than 4 years

Impairment
2016
£m

Gross
2015
£m

Impairment
2015
£m

30.3
21.9
16.8
13.2
19.5

(6.5)
(8.3)
(8.7)
(8.4)
(14.0)

34.3
21.7
15.6
12.4
15.8

(7.0)
(7.9)
(7.8)
(8.1)
(10.5)

101.7

(45.9)

99.8

(41.3)

The movement in the provision for bad debts in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:
2016
£m

2015
£m

Balance at 1 April
Written off
Charge to profit and loss

(41.3)
7.0
(11.6)

(39.6)
10.4
(12.1)

Balance at 31 March

(45.9)

(41.3)

The bad debt policy is shown in the accounting policies (note 1.15).

(c) Cash flow hedges
The Company does not have any cash flow hedges.

(d) Liquidity risk

Financial risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Company is a regulated utility with a five year settlement with the industry regulator, which allows it to
plan to a certain degree of accuracy the financial obligations in the medium term. The Company has also
secured long-term funding through bonds issued by its subsidiary company. This means that the need to
obtain additional finance has been spread over future years and is not considered onerous in any one
regulatory period.
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Financial instruments (continued)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and
excluding the effect of netting agreements:
Carrying
amount
2016
£m

Contractual
cash flows
2016
£m

2016
£m

Years 2
to 5
2016
£m

Over 5
years
2016
£m

Non derivative financial
instruments
Finance lease liabilities
Secured bank loans
Inter-company loans

16.4
365.0
1,570.2

18.1
394.5
2,923.3

5.3
4.8
56.1

12.8
156.4
225.7

233.3
2,641.5

Total financial instruments

1,951.6

3,335.9

66.2

394.9

2,874.8

Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Year 1

Years 2
to 5

Over 5
years

2015
£m

2015
£m

2015
£m

2015
£m

2015
£m

Non derivative financial
instruments
Finance lease liabilities
Secured bank loans
Inter-company loans

20.5
315.0
1,559.4

23.1
341.8
3,672.4

5.0
3.8
56.1

18.1
155.5
227.2

182.5
3,389.1

Total financial instruments

1,894.9

4,037.3

64.9

400.8

3,571.6

Year 1

(e) Market risk
There is no exposure to equity or foreign currency risk, the interest rate risk is shown below.
Interest rate risk
At the year end the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:
2015
2016
£m
£m
Fixed rate instruments
Floating rate instruments
Index linked instruments

947.8
281.4
722.4

848.3
335.5
711.1

1,951.6

1,894.9

The company policy is to keep a significant proportion of total financial instruments in each of the three
categories.

Sensitivity
The floating rate instruments are sensitive to interest rate movements. If there was a 1% increase in interest
rates on those floating rate instruments at the balance sheet date, there would be an additional interest
charge to the income statement of £2.8m.
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22.

Operating Leases

There were no non-cancellable operating lease rentals, payable by the Company.
During the year £1.7m was recognised as an expense in the income statement in respect of operating leases
(2015 - £1.8m).
During the year £0.9m (2015 - £0.9m) was recognised as rental income by the Company.

23.

Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided at 31 March 2016 was £112.9m (2015 - £160.9m).
The Company has guaranteed Bonds of £1,570.2m (2015 - £1,559.4m) issued by its wholly owned
subsidiary company Wessex Water Services Finance Plc.

24.

Contingencies

There are no material contingent liabilities at 31 March 2016 for which provision has not been made in these
accounts.

25.

Related Parties

There were no transactions with key management personnel.
Directors’ emoluments have been disclosed in the Remuneration Committee Report.
There have been no transactions with pre-penultimate, penultimate and ultimate holding companies
described in note 26, with the exception of the share based payment charge disclosed in note 16.
Transactions with fellow UK subsidiary companies are disclosed in the Performance Review published
alongside the Non-Statutory Accounts.

26.

Ultimate Parent Company and Parent Company of Larger Group

The smallest group into which the financial statements of the Company are consolidated is that headed by
Wessex Water Ltd, a company incorporated in England whose registered address is Wessex Water
Operations Centre, Claverton Down, Bath, BA2 7WW.
The pre-penultimate, penultimate and ultimate holding companies are YTL Power International Berhad, YTL
Corporation Berhad and Yeoh Tiong Lay & Sons Holdings Sdn Bhd respectively, all registered in Malaysia.
The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by YTL Corporation
Berhad incorporated in Malaysia. The consolidated financial statements of these groups are available to the
public and can be obtained from Yeoh Tiong Lay Plaza, 55 Jalan Bukit Bintang, 55100 Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia.

27.

Subsequent Events

There are no subsequent events requiring disclosure in these financial statements, apart from the dividend
declared in April 2016 (note 8).
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28.

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In preparing the financial statements and applying the accounting policies, the Company is required to make
reasonable estimates and judgements based on the available information, the most significant of which are;
a)

Defined benefit pension scheme deficit

In recognising the deficit on the balance sheet there are a number of assumptions concerning inflation, rate
of increase of salaries and pensions, mortality rates and interest rates that can have a significant effect on
the deficit recorded. These assumptions are discussed with independent qualified actuaries and disclosed in
note 16 to the financial statements.
b)

Bad debt provision

The methodology behind the provision is based upon the age of the debt and the method of payment of the
debt. Historical evidence is used to determine a percentage of debt to be provided according to the age and
payment type.
c)

Fair value of assets

On first time adoption of IFRS the company recognised a fair value uplift to fixed assets (see note 20).
d)

Classification of capital expenditure

Due to the high value of capital expenditure the judgements made on the classification of expenses as
operating or capital, and within capital between maintenance and enhancement, are key to the preparation of
the accounts. The Company follows both accounting standards and guidelines issued by Ofwat in making
these judgements.
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